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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management acknowledges responsibility for the preparation and presentation of financial statements of
TMAC Resources Inc. (the “Company”) which have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The financial
statements reflect management’s best estimates and judgments based on currently available information
and for the choice of accounting principles and methods that are appropriate to the Company’s
circumstances.

Management has developed and maintains a system of internal controls in order to ensure, on a reasonable
and cost effective basis, the reliability of its financial information.

The Board of Directors is responsible for reviewing and approving the financial statements together with
other financial information of the Company and for ensuring that management fulfills its financial reporting
responsibilities. The Audit Committee, whose members are independent directors of the Company, assists
the Board of Directors in fulfilling this responsibility. The Audit Committee meets with management and the
external auditors periodically. The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls over the financial reporting
process, the financial statements and the auditors’ report. The Audit Committee reports its findings to the
Board of Directors for its consideration in approving the financial statements together with other financial
information of the Company for issuance to shareholders. The Audit Committee also has the responsibility
of engaging the external auditors.

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP. Their report outlines the scope of their
examination and opinion on the financial statements.

Management recognizes its responsibility for conducting the Company’'s affairs in compliance with

established financial standards, and applicable laws and regulations, and for maintaining proper standards
of conduct for its activities.

oty or)

Catharine Farrow Ronald P. Gagel
Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
April 8, 2015

Toronto, Canada
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KPMG LLP Telephone (416) 777-8500
Chartered Accountants Fax (416) 777-8818
Bay Adelaide Centre Internet www.kpmg.ca

333 Bay Street Suite 4600
Toronto ON M5H 2S5

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of TMAC Resources Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TMAC Resources Inc., which comprise the
statements of financial position as at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the statements of profit
or loss, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the
period from October 30, 2012, date of incorporation, to December 31, 2013, and notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.

KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of TMAC
Resources Inc. as at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the period from October 30, 2012, date of
incorporation, to December 31, 2013 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Emphasis of Matter

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which indicates that
TMAC Resources Inc.’s ability to maintain its mineral investments, fund its exploration and evaluation and
administration costs and refinance letters of credit required under its mineral permits is contingent upon
completing additional financing, and there is no assurance that adequate financing will be available in the
future. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1 in the financial statements, indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about TMAC Resources Inc.’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

K
=

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
April 8, 2015
Toronto, Canada



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

As at As at
December December
Notes 31,2014 31, 2013
$000s $000s
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 32,044 17,837
Amounts receivable 4 795 406
Consumables, materials and supplies 5 8,703 7,097
Prepaid expenses 484 850
Equipment held for sale 6 4,000 -
46,026 26,190
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 526,053 483,696
Goodwill 7 80,600 80,600
Other 8 4,504 2,798
611,157 567,094
Total assets 657,183 593,284
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9 6,453 1,803
Newmont Loan 10 - 14,369
Other liabilities 11 388 -
6,841 16,172
Non-current liabilities
Provision for environmental rehabilitation 12 23,760 16,681
Deferred tax liabilities 13 76,028 80,300
99,788 96,981
Total liabilities 106,629 113,153
Equity
Share capital 14 560,331 482,788
Reserves 14 2,673 496
Accumulated deficit (12,450) (3,153)
550,554 480,131
Total equity and liabilities 657,183 593,284

Going Concern (note 1)
Commitments and contingencies (note 20)
Subsequent events (note 21)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the board of directors

M s ot

A. Terrence MacGibbon Andrew P. Adams
Executive Chairman Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended December 31, 2014 and the period from October 30, 2012, date of incorporation, to December 31, 2013

(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Year ended Period ended

December 31, December
Notes 2014 31, 2013
$000s $000s
General and administrative
Salaries and wages 3,464 1,220
Share-based payments 14 1,948 -
Impairment of equipment held for sale 6 4,538 -
Professional fees and consulting 876 591
Travel 187 155
Investor relations 122 33
Office, regulatory and general 258 130
Loss before the following 11,393 2,129
Finance income 15 (430) (170)
Finance expense 15 1,688 381
Foreign exchange loss 16 1
Business development expenses 3 - 1,176
Loss before income taxes for the period 12,667 3,517
Deferred income tax expense / (recovery) 13 (3,209) (364)
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the period 9,458 3,153
Net loss per share 14(d)
Basic & diluted $0.06 $0.04
Weighted average number of shares (thousands)
Basic and diluted 112,680 82,519

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

TMAC RESOURCES INC.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the year ended December 31, 2014 and the period from October 30, 2012, date of incorporation, to December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Share
Notes Shares Capital Reserves Deficit Total
#000s $000s $000s $000s $000s
Balance as at October 30, 2012 - - - - -
Private placement and share split 14 12,600 - - - -
Issued on purchase of Hope Bay 3 57,400 450,000 - - 450,000
Initial Equity Financing 14 11,497 32,788 - - 32,788
Initial Equity Financing Rights 14 1,022 - - - -
Equity component of Newmont
Loan, net of tax 10 - - 496 - 496
Net loss for the period - - - (3,153) (3,153)
Balance as at December 31, 2013 82,519 482,788 496 (3,153) 480,131
Second Equity Financing 14(b)(vi) 44,378 74,997 - - 74,997
Prepayment of Newmont loan, net
of tax 10 - - (496) 161 (335)
Third Equity Financing 14(b)(vii) 1,550 2,546 - - 2,546
Share Based Payments 14(c) - - 2,673 - 2,673
Net loss for the year - - - (9,458) (9,458)
Balance as at December 31, 2014 128,447 560,331 2,673 (12,450) 550,554

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended December 31, 2014 and the period from October 30, 2012, date of incorporation, to December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

Year ended Period ended
December 31, December 31,

Notes 2014 2013
$000s $000s
Net loss for the period (9,458) (3,153)
Operating activities
Adjusted for:
Share-based payments 1,948 -
Finance income 15 (430) (170)
Finance expense 15 1,688 381
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 5 1
Impairment of equipment held for sale 6 4,538 -
Deferred tax expense (recovery) 13 (3,209) (364)
Increase (decrease) in non-cash operating working capital:
Amounts receivable (389) (406)
Prepaid expenses (79) (211)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,180 103
Operating cash flows before interest and tax (4,206) (3,819)
Cash tax paid -
Cash interest paid (438) (32
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities (4,644) (3,851)
Investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment 6 (43,302) (26,150)
Interest received 430 170
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities (42,872) (25,980)
Financing activities
Initial equity financing, net of issue costs 14(b) - 32,669
Second equity financing, net of issue costs 14(b) 74,121 -
Third equity financing, net of issue costs 14(b) 2,872 -
Newmont Loan 10 (15,265) 15,000
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities 61,728 47,669
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents (5) 1)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents for the period 14,207 17,837
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 17,837 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 32,044 17,837

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN

TMAC Resources Inc. (“TMAC” or the "Company") was incorporated on October 30, 2012, in the
Province of Ontario, Canada, and is involved in the exploration, evaluation and development of the Hope
Bay mineral property in the Kitikmeot Region of Nunavut, Canada (“Hope Bay”) (note 3). TMAC's
registered address is 95 Wellington Street West, Suite 1010, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2N7. These financial
statements are for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the fourteen month period from October 30,
2012, date of incorporation, to December 31, 2013.

TMAC's efforts are devoted to the exploration, evaluation and development of Hope Bay. The
recoverability of the amount paid for the acquisition of, and investment in, Hope Bay is dependent upon
the discovery of economically recoverable reserves and resources, the preservation of the Company’s
interest in the underlying mineral licences and mining lease agreements, the ability to obtain necessary
financing to complete the exploration, evaluation and development of Hope Bay and the attainment of
profitable operations thereat or, alternatively, the disposal of whole or part of Hope Bay or TMAC's
interests therein on an advantageous basis.

TMAC is subject to risks and challenges similar to other companies in a comparable stage of exploration
and development. These risks include, but are not limited to, continuing losses, dependence on key
individuals and the ability to secure adequate financing to meet minimum capital required to successfully
satisfy its commitments and continue as a going concern.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company reported a loss of $9,458,000 and, as at December
31, 2014, an accumulated deficit of $12,450,000. As at December 31, 2014, TMAC does not have
sufficient funds available from existing cash on hand to maintain its mineral investments, fund its
exploration and evaluation and administration costs and to develop Hope Bay for production. TMAC'’s
future is currently dependent upon its ability to obtain sufficient cash from external financing in order to
fund the ultimate development and construction of Hope Bay. The Company raised gross proceeds of
$41,026,000 from Tranche 2 of the Third Equity Financing in January 2015 (note 21(b)). TMAC's
expenditures and commitments in 2015 to date along with forecast minimum expenditures for the balance
of the year, result in the Company forecasting to have less than $18 million of cash remaining on hand at
December 31, 2015. Accordingly, the Company does not have sufficient funds on hand to meets its
expenditure needs and to refinance, by December 31, 2015, the letters of credit currently maintained on
its behalf (note18(iv)). Although the maturity date of the letters of credit support was extended from June
30, 2014 to December 31, 2015, there is no assurance that it would be extended again. While the
Company has been successful in raising funds to date, as evidenced by the financings in March 2013,
April 2014, December 2014 and January 2015, there can be no assurance that adequate funding will be
available in the future, or available under terms acceptable to the Company, to meet its financial
obligations for at least one year. These circumstances indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt as to the ability of the Company to meet its obligations as they come due
and, accordingly, the ultimate appropriateness of the use of accounting principles applicable to a going
concern. These financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis. Accordingly, they
do not give effect to adjustments that would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as
a going concern and, therefore, be required to realize its assets and liquidate its liabilities and
commitments in other than the normal course of business at amounts different from those in these
financial statements.

TMAC RESOURCES INC. Financial Statements 9



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

2.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

The board of directors (the “Board”) approved these financial statements on April 8, 2015.
(b) Basis of presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the financial
instruments that are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

(c) Functional and presentation currency and foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars. The functional currency of TMAC is the
Canadian dollar.

Transactions denominated in a foreign currency have been translated into Canadian dollars at exchange
rates on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at
the period end date are translated to the functional currency at the rate of exchange at that date. Any
conversion differences are recorded as exchange gains or losses in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(d) Measurement uncertainty - critical accounting judgments and estimation uncertainties

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and related notes.
These judgments, estimates and assumptions are based on management’s experience and knowledge
of the relevant facts and circumstances. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Information about
areas of judgment and key sources of uncertainty and estimation is contained in the description of the
accounting policies and/or the notes to the financial statements.

Judgments, estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised.

The key areas where judgments, estimates and assumptions have been made in the reporting period or
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are summarized below.

(i) Estimated reserves and resources

Reserves and resources are estimates of the amount of metal that can be extracted from the
Company’s properties, considering both economic and legal factors. Estimating the quantity and/or
grade of reserves and resources requires the analysis of drilling samples and other geological data.
Calculating reserve and resource estimates requires decisions on assumptions about geological,
technical and economic factors, including quantities, grades, production techniques, recovery rates,
production costs, transportation costs, commodity prices and foreign exchange rates.

TMAC RESOURCES INC. Financial Statements 10



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

Estimates of reserves and resources may change from period to period as the economic
assumptions used to estimate reserves and resources change from period to period, and as a result
of additional geological data generated during the course of operations. Changes in reported
reserves and resources may affect TMAC'’s financial position in a number of ways, including the
following:
. Asset carrying values may be affected due to changes in estimated future cash flows;

Prospective depreciation charges in the Statement of Profit or Loss may change when such
charges are determined by the unit-of-production basis, or when the useful lives of assets
change; and

Provision for reclamation liabilities balances may be affected as the estimated timing of
reclamation activities is adjusted for changes in the estimated mine life as determined by
the available reserves and resources.

(i) Determination of useful life of assets for depreciation purposes

Significant judgment is involved in the determination of the useful life and residual value of long-lived
assets that drive the calculation of depreciation charges. Changes in the estimate of useful lives and
residual values may impact the depreciation calculations.

(iii) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Judgment is involved in assessing whether there are any indications that an asset or cash generating
unit (“CGU”) may be impaired. This assessment is made based on an analysis of, amongst other
factors, changes in the market or business environment, events that have transpired that have
impacted the asset or CGU and information from internal reporting.

For the purpose of determining the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU operating results and
net cash flow forecasts are determined by estimating the expected future revenues and costs,
including the future cash costs of production, capital expenditures, site closure and environmental
rehabilitation. The net cash flow forecast includes cash flows expected to be realized from the
extraction, processing and sale of proven and probable ore reserves as well as mineral resources
that do not currently qualify for inclusion in proven and probable ore reserves when there is a high
degree of confidence in the economic extraction of such non-reserve material. This expectation is
usually based on preliminary drilling and sampling of areas of mineralization that are contiguous with
existing reserves and resources.

Judgment is also required in estimating the discount rate applied and future commaodity prices used
for impairment testing. The long-term commodity prices are derived from forward prices and analysts’
commodity price forecasts. These assessments often differ from current price levels and are updated
periodically.

Impairment testing is done at the CGU level. TMAC expects to have multiple possible mining areas
and management must exercise judgment in determining what constitutes a CGU and the degree of
aggregation of various assets. These factors impact the impairment analysis performed as the results
of the impairment analysis might differ based on the composition of the various CGU'’s.

TMAC RESOURCES INC. Financial Statements 11



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

(iv) Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in business combinations

In a business combination the identifiable assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on the date
of acquisition. The determination of the fair value of the assets and liabilities is based, to a
considerable extent, on management’s judgments and estimates, as of the acquisition date, of the
amount of mineral reserves and resources acquired, the exploration potential for areas with no
identified mineral reserves and resources, future commodity prices, future operating costs and
capital expenditure requirements and discount rates. Any excess of acquisition cost over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets is recognized as goodwiill.

(v) Determining if an acquisition is a business

A business combination is defined as an acquisition of assets and liabilities that constitute a
business. A business consists of inputs, including non-current assets, and processes, including
operational processes, that when applied to those inputs have the ability to create outputs that
provide a return to the Company and its shareholders. When acquiring a set of activities or assets in
the exploration, evaluation and development stage, which may not have outputs, judgment is
required to consider other factors to determine whether the set of activities or assets is a business.
Those factors include, but are not limited to, whether the set of activities or assets:
- Has begun planned principal activities;

Has employees, intellectual property and other inputs and processes that could be applied to

those inputs;

Is pursuing a plan to produce outputs; and,

Will be able to obtain access to customers that will purchase the outputs.

Not all of the above factors need to be present for a particular integrated set of activities or assets in
the exploration and development stage to qualify as a business.

(vi) Environmental rehabilitation costs

Environmental rehabilitation obligation provisions represent management’s best estimate of the
present value of the future costs to close and rehabilitate the mine site. Significant estimates and
assumptions are made in determining the amount of future environmental rehabilitation costs. These
estimates and assumptions deal with uncertainties such as: requirements of the relevant legal and
regulatory framework; the magnitude of possible contamination; determination of the appropriate
discount rate; and, the timing, extent and costs of required mine closure and environmental
rehabilitation activities. These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditures that differ from
the amounts currently provided. Management assesses the provision for environmental rehabilitation
on an annual basis or when new information becomes available.

(vii) Taxation
The provision for income taxes and composition of income tax assets and liabilities requires
management’s judgment as to the types of obligations considered to be a tax on income in contrast

to an operating cost. The application of income tax legislation also requires judgment in order to
interpret the various legislations and apply those interpretations to the Company’s transactions.

TMAC RESOURCES INC. Financial Statements 12



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

Management judgments and estimates are required in assessing whether deferred income tax
assets are recognized in the Statement of Financial Position. Judgments are made as to whether
future taxable profits will be available in order to recognize certain deferred income tax assets.
Assumptions about the generation of future taxable profits depend on management’s estimates of
future cash flows resulting from estimates of future production and sales volumes, commaodity prices,
reserves and resources, operating costs and other capital management transactions. These
judgments, estimates and assumptions are subject to risks and uncertainties and, therefore, there is
a possibility that changes in circumstances will alter expectations, which may impact the amount of
deferred income tax assets recognized in the Statement of Financial Position and the benefit of other
tax losses and temporary differences not yet recognized.

There are a number of factors that can significantly impact TMAC's effective tax rate including the
geographic distribution of income, varying rates in different jurisdictions within Canada, the non-
recognition of deferred income tax assets, mining allowance, foreign currency exchange rate
movements, changes in tax laws and the impact of specific transactions and assessments. Due to
the number of factors that can potentially impact the effective tax rate and the sensitivity of the tax
provision to these factors, it is expected that TMAC's effective tax rate will fluctuate in future periods.

(viii) Share-based payments

The fair value of shared-based payments is calculated using an appropriate option pricing model.
The main assumptions used in the model include the estimated life of the option, the expected
volatility of the Company’s share price (using historical volatility of similar publicly traded companies
as a reference), the expected dividends, the expected forfeiture rate and the risk-free rate of interest.
The resulting value calculated is not necessarily the value that the holder of the option could receive
in an arm’s length transaction given that there is no market for the options and they are not
transferrable.

(ix) Functional currency

Judgment is required to determine the functional currency of an entity. These judgments are
continuously evaluated and are based on management’s experience and knowledge of the relevant
facts and circumstances.

(X) Compound financial instruments

The fair value of the liability component of convertible debt is determined using management’s best
estimate of what the interest of a similar loan without a conversion option would be.

(xi) Contingencies

Contingencies can be either possible assets or possible liabilities arising from past events which, by
their nature, will only be resolved when one or more future events not wholly within the control of the
Company occur or fail to occur. The assessment of such contingencies inherently involves the
exercise of significant judgment and estimates of the outcome of future events. In assessing loss
contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pending against TMAC or unasserted claims that
may result in such proceedings, or regulatory or government actions that may negatively impact
TMAC's business or operations, the Company and its legal counsel evaluate the perceived merits of
any legal proceedings or unasserted claims or actions as well as the perceived merits of the nature
and amount of relief sought or expected to be sought, when determining the amount, if any, to
recognize as a provision or on assessing the impact on the carrying value of assets. Contingent
assets are not recognized in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

(e) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method of accounting, whereby the
identifiable assets and liabilities are recognized and measured at their fair value on the date of acquisition.
Mineral rights that can be reliably valued are recognized in the assessment of fair values on acquisition.
Gooduwill is recognized either when the purchase price exceeds the fair value of the identifiable net assets
or when there are deferred income taxes arising on the business combination. When certain information
relating to the fair value is not finalized at the time of reporting, provisional fair values allocated at a period
end date are finalized as soon as the relevant information is available, within a period not to exceed twelve
months from the acquisition date with retroactive restatement of the impact of adjustments to those
provisional fair values effective as at the acquisition date. Costs related to business combination
acquisitions are expensed as incurred.

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash held with major Canadian financial institutions in the form of
cash and guaranteed investment certificates with investment terms that are less than 90 days at the time
of acquisition

(g) Consumables, materials and supplies and other assets

Consumables and materials and supplies inventories are valued on a weighted average basis and carried
at the lower of acquisition cost and net realizable value.

Other assets is comprised of gold ore on surface and prepayments for long-term assets. Gold ore on
surface is valued at the lower of production cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
selling.

(h) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment charges, if any.

(i) General

Property, plant and equipment costs include the fair value of consideration paid, including cash and
shares, if any, on acquisition. Exploration expenditures relate to the initial search for deposits with
economic potential. Evaluation expenditures arise from a detailed assessment of deposits or projects
that have been identified as having economic potential. When a decision is made that an exploration
and evaluation project has advanced to the development for production stage, the accumulated costs
associated with that project are reclassified to project under development. Development costs are
capitalized and include the costs associated with bringing the project to the production stage. When
a decision is made that a project under development has advanced to the production stage, the
accumulated costs associated with that project are reclassified as mining operations. At the
production stage, the capitalization of certain mine construction costs ceases and such future costs
are either capitalized to inventory or expensed. Other costs related to property, plant and equipment
additions or improvements, underground mine development that have a future economic benefit, and
exploration and evaluation expenditures that meet the criteria for capitalization, are capitalized.

The amount of property acquisition costs and their related deferred exploration and evaluation and

development expenditures represent historic expenditures incurred and are not intended to reflect
present or future fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

Upon sale or abandonment of any mineral interest, the cost and related accumulated depreciation
are written-off and any gains or losses thereon are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(i) Property

Property includes its purchase price and, prior to the commencement of production, any government
fees and taxes and usage fees for aboriginal organizations thereon to maintain the property in good
standing.

(iii) Plant, equipment and mobile equipment

Plant, equipment and mobile equipment include its purchase price, any costs directly attributable to
bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and the estimated mine closure and environmental rehabilitation costs
associated with dismantling and removing the asset.

(iv) Exploration and evaluation

Exploration and evaluation costs are capitalized and are comprised of costs that are directly
attributable to:
Researching and analyzing existing exploration data;
Conducting geological studies, exploration drilling and sampling;
Examining and testing extraction and treatment methods; and,
Activities in relation to evaluating the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
a mineral resource.

(v) Development costs

Development costs are capitalized until the mineral property is determined to be in production,
becomes inactive, is sold or abandoned. Development costs include costs related to accessing the
ore body, designing and constructing the production infrastructure, borrowing costs relating to
construction and other costs that can be directly attributed to bringing the assets to the condition
necessary for their intended use. This includes costs associated with the commissioning period
before the asset is in production and can operate at the level intended by management.

(vi) Depreciation

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are depreciated to their estimated residual
value over the estimated useful life of the specific assets to which they relate.

Accumulated development property costs are not depreciated prior to the commencement of
production.

Estimates of residual values and useful lives and the method of depreciation are reassessed
annually. Any change in estimate is taken into account in the determination of remaining depreciation
charges. Depreciation commences on the date when the asset is available for use in the location
and condition necessary to be operated in the manner intended by management, as follows:
Property - based on reserves and resources in the mine plan on a unit-of-production basis;
Plant and equipment - straight-line over the estimated useful life of the asset or on a unit-of-
production basis based on the usage of the asset;
Buildings - straight-line over the estimated useful life of the asset or on a unit-of-production basis
based on the usage of the asset; and,
Mobile equipment — straight-line over 2 to 5 years based on the estimated useful life in years or
on a unit-of-production basis based on the usage of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

(vii) Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews its property, plant and equipment at the
CGU level to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. The Company will perform an
impairment test on its property, plant and equipment if an indicator of impairment exists. In addition,
when property, plant and equipment in the exploration and evaluation stage are reclassified to project
under development, the Company will perform an impairment test.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount. Impairment is recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit or Loss. If the circumstances leading to the impairment change, and an
impairment subsequently reverses, the carrying amount is increased to the revised estimate of
recoverable amount but only to the extent that it does not exceed the carrying value that would have
been determined if no impairment had previously been recognized. Any subsequent reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

The recoverable amount for property, plant and equipment is generally determined based on its fair
value less costs of disposal, which represents the present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset, including any expansion prospects, and its
eventual disposal, using assumptions that an independent market participant may take into account.
The Company’s weighted average cost of capital is used as a starting point for determining the
discount rate.

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on a business combination, including goodwill resulting from the required deferred tax
adjustment, is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business, less accumulated
impairment charges, if any.

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication of impairment.
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the same CGU as the assets acquired in
the business combination through which it was created.

(i) Leases

Leases in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

Leases of property and equipment where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

TMAC RESOURCES INC. Financial Statements 16



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

(k) Provisions
(i) General

Provisions are recognized when TMAC has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources that can be reliably estimated will be
required to settle the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. The increase in
provisions due to the effect of the time value of money is recognized as a finance expense in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

(i) Environmental rehabilitation

The development, construction, mining, extraction and processing activities of the Company normally
give rise to obligations for environmental rehabilitation. A provision is recognized for environmental
rehabilitation costs, which include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, removal of
residual materials and remediation of disturbed areas, in the financial period when the related
environmental disturbance occurs, based on the estimated future costs using information available
at the period end date.

At the time of establishing the provision, a corresponding asset is capitalized when it gives rise to a
future benefit and depreciated over future production from the operations to which it relates. The
provision is discounted to its present value using a risk free rate relevant to the jurisdiction in which
the rehabilitation has to be performed. The unwinding of the discount is included in finance expense.
Costs arising from unforeseen circumstances, such as the contamination caused by unplanned
discharges, are recognized as an expense and liability when the event gives rise to an obligation
which is probable and can be reliably estimated.

The provision is reviewed at the end of each reporting period for changes to obligations, legislation
or discount rates that impact estimated costs or timing of the obligation. The cost of the related asset
is adjusted for changes in the provision resulting from changes in the estimated cash flows or
discount rate and the adjusted cost of the asset is depreciated prospectively.

() Income taxes

TMAC uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of
assets and liabilities and on losses carried forward. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the substantively enacted tax rates in effect at the end of the reporting period that are
expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse or losses are expected to be utilized.
The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a change in the substantively enacted tax rate
is included in income in the period in which the change is substantively enacted. Deferred income tax
assets are recorded to recognize tax benefits only to the extent that, based on available evidence, it is
probable that they will be realized. This evaluation requires management to make judgments as to
whether it is probable that a tax asset may be realized in the future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current

income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

(m) Share capital
(i) Common shares

TMAC’s common shares (“Common Shares”) are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issuance of Common Shares, net of any tax effects, are recognized as a deduction
from equity.

(i) Flow-through common shares

From time to time TMAC may finance a portion of its exploration activities through the issuance of
flow-through Common Shares. Canadian income tax legislation permits a company to issue flow-
through instruments whereby the income tax deductions relating to qualified Canadian exploration
expenditures (“CEE”") as defined in the Income Tax Act (Canada) are claimed by the investors rather
than by the company. Shares issued on a flow-through basis typically include a premium related to
the tax benefits provided to the investors. The Company estimates the portion of the proceeds
attributable to the premium as being the excess of the subscription price over the fair value of the
shares without the flow-through feature at the time of issuance. The premium is recorded as a
deferred liability and is included in income at the time the CEE are incurred.

(n) Share-based payments

Employees, directors, senior executives and consultants of the Company are eligible to receive a portion
of their remuneration in the form of share-based payment arrangements whereby they render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“share-based payments”).

The fair value of a share-based payment is recorded as an expense or a component of property, plant
and equipment, based on the nature of the services rendered, over the vesting period of the award with
a corresponding increase recorded in contributed surplus. The fair value of the share-based payments
for employees, directors and senior executives is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The fair value of a share-based payment for a consultant is determined based on the fair value of
the goods and services received and requires management to make an estimate of the value of the goods
and services received. Upon exercise of a share option, consideration paid by the option holder, together
with the amount previously recognized in contributed surplus, is recorded as an increase to share capital.

(o) Earnings (loss) per share
Earnings (loss) per share calculations are based on the weighted average number of Common Shares
and Common Share equivalents issued and outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per
share is calculated using the treasury stock method. Under this method, the dilutive effect of earnings
(loss) per share is recognized on the use of proceeds that could be obtained from the exercise of options,
warrants and similar instruments, if dilutive. It assumes that proceeds would be used to purchase
Common Shares at the average market price for the period.
(p) Financial instruments
All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value in the Statement of Financial Position.

(i) Financial assets

Financial assets are initially recorded at fair value and designated upon inception into one of the

following four categories: held to maturity; available for sale; loans and receivables; or, at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL").
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables and held to maturity are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.

Financial assets classified as available for sale are measured at fair value with unrealized gains and
losses recognized in other comprehensive income. When the asset is disposed of, or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in other comprehensive income
is recognized through the Statement of Profit of Loss.

Transaction costs associated with FVTPL financial assets are expensed as incurred, while
transaction costs associated with all other financial assets are included in the initial carrying amount
of the asset.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will be realized by the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate
applicable.

(i) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value and designated upon inception as FVTPL or
other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities classified as other financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less
directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities classified as FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as FVTPL unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Transaction costs on financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are expensed as incurred. Fair value
changes on financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognized through the Statement of Profit of
Loss.

(iii) Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments are comprised of instruments that can be converted into a fixed
number of shares at the option of the holder.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognized initially at the fair value of
a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is recognized
initially as the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and
the fair value of the liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to initial recognition.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. On conversion,
the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each period end date whether there are indications that a financial asset
is impaired.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortized cost
has occurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the financial asset is then reduced by the
amount of the impairment. The amount of the loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying value of the financial asset
does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly related to financing an acquisition, exploration, construction or development of
qualifying assets are capitalized to the cost of those assets until such time they are substantially ready
for their intended use.

Where funds have been borrowed specifically to finance an asset, the amount capitalized is the actual
borrowing cost incurred. Where the funds used to finance an asset form part of general borrowings, the
amount capitalized is calculated using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general
borrowings of the Company during the period.

Transaction costs related to the establishment of a loan facility are capitalized and amortized over the life
of the loan facility using the effective interest rate method, or set off against the fair value of the loan
facility. Other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

(r) Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions, or
if they are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals
or corporate entities. A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when there is a transfer
of resources or obligations between related parties.

(s) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
decision maker. The chief decision maker has been identified as the executive leadership team, which
comprises the Executive Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President and certain other senior
executives. The executive leadership team is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the
performance of operating segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

(t) Adoption of new and revised international financial reporting standards

On January 1, 2014, the Company adopted the following new and amended standards and
interpretations:

(i) IFRIC 21, Levies

IFRIC 21, Levies, (“IFRIC 21") provides guidance on the accounting for levies within the scope of IAS
37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The main features of IFRIC 21 are: (i)
the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity that triggers the payment of
the levy, as identified by the legislation, and (ii) the liability to pay a levy is recognized progressively if
the obligating event occurs over a period of time. The adoption of this interpretation did not have an
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(i) 1AS 32, Financial instruments: presentation

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, (“IAS 32") clarifies that an entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset financial assets and financial liabilities if that right is not contingent
on a future event and it is enforceable both in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all counterparties. The adoption of this standard did not
have an impact on the Company'’s financial statements.

The Company has reviewed new and revised accounting pronouncements that have been issued but
are not yet effective and determined that the following may have an impact on the Company’s future
financial statements:

() IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, (“IFRS 9”) will replace IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities.

IFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair
value. Debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding, are generally measured at amortized cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting periods. A fair value option is provided for
financial instruments otherwise measured at amortized cost. This standard also requires a single
impairment method to be used, replacing the multiple impairment methods in IAS 39. The IASB
announced that IFRS 9 will come into effect in January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. The
Company has yet to assess IFRS 9's impact on its financial statements.

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”) will replace IAS 18, Revenue.

IFRS 15 establishes a single five-step model framework for determining the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The standard is
effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, with early adoption permitted. The
Company will assess the impact of adopting this standard prior to commencement of commercial
production.

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to
have a material impact on the Company.
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As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

3. ACQUISITION OF HOPE BAY

On November 30, 2012, Newmont Mining Corporation (collectively with its subsidiaries “Newmont”) and
TMAC entered into a letter agreement whereby TMAC agreed to purchase 100% of Hope Bay from Hope
Bay Mining Ltd. (“HBML"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Newmont that subsequently changed its name
to Newmont Mining B.C. U.L.C., subject to HBML retaining a 1% net smelter royalty (the “Newmont NSR”")
on any metals produced from Hope Bay and a specified surrounding area of interest. A formal agreement
of purchase and sale entitled “Transaction Agreement” between HBML and TMAC was entered into on
January 25, 2013 and was amended at the time of closing of the transaction on March 12, 2013 (the
“Closing”) by way of an “Amending Agreement”, dated March 12, 2013, (collectively the “Transaction
Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Transaction Agreement, all of the Hope Bay assets were vended to TMAC for an
aggregate purchase consideration of $450,000,000 (the “Purchase Consideration”) in exchange for the
issuance by TMAC of 57,400,000 Common Shares (the “Payment Shares”) to HBML representing 82%
of the 70,000,000 Common Shares of TMAC then outstanding. HBML transferred $300,000,000 of tax
attributes to TMAC as part of the Purchase Consideration. In addition, TMAC assumed environmental
rehabilitation liabilities for Hope Bay.

TMAC established two types of Common Shares: Voting Common Shares (the “Voting Shares”) and
Non-Voting Common Shares (the “Non-Voting Shares”) (note 14). Newmont's 57,400,0000 Common
Shares were split between Voting Shares and Non-Voting Shares such that Newmont’'s ownership of
Voting Shares was 49.9% of the Voting Shares outstanding, and TMAC’s management owned the
remaining 18% or 12,600,000 Common Shares of the 70,000,000 Common Shares issued and
outstanding at Closing. Pursuant to the Transaction Agreement, should at any time the total number of
Common Shares owned by HBML result in Newmont beneficially owning more than 49.9% of the
aggregate issued and outstanding Common Shares immediately following completion of the Initial Equity
Financing (as defined below) the number of Voting Shares held by Newmont will instead equal an amount
which results in Newmont's ownership of Voting Shares being 49.9% of the aggregate issued and
outstanding Voting Shares (on a non-diluted basis) at such time, and the remaining Payment Shares shall
be Non-Voting Shares.

The Transaction Agreement also contains certain post-Closing terms and conditions including:

As a condition of Closing, TMAC was to complete a private placement in the amount of $30,000,000
to $35,000,000, the funds for which were to pay for the acquisition costs incurred to purchase Hope
Bay along with providing funds to conduct exploration, evaluation, environmental and administrative
activities. Immediately after Closing, a private placement of Common Shares for an aggregate
amount of $35,000,000 was completed (the “Initial Equity Financing”)(note 14);

TMAC shall use commercially reasonable efforts to complete an initial public offering of TMAC
Common Shares (the “IPO Financing”) by December 31, 2013 and to have the Common Shares,
including the Payment Shares (but not including the Non-Voting Shares), approved for listing on the
Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX”). Despite using commercially reasonable efforts, market conditions
did not permit TMAC to complete the IPO Financing by December 31, 2013; and

TMAC agreed to indemnify Newmont for any funds expended in connection with draws made on the
letters of credit associated with Newmont's environmental rehabilitation obligations for Hope Bay
under the permits that are held by Aboriginal Affairs and Northern Development Canada, the
Department of Fisheries and Oceans and the Kitkmeot Inuit Association (“KIA”) (the “Letters of
Credit”). TMAC was to arrange for replacement bonds and/or letters of credit on or before the earlier
of 30 days following the closing of the IPO Financing and June 30, 2014 (note 18).
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In addition, a number of ancillary agreements were entered into between Newmont and TMAC on March

12, 2013, including:

- TMAC obtained a commitment from an affiliate of HBML (the “Commitment Letter”) to provide a
non-revolving loan in the principal amount of up to $15,000,000 (the “Newmont Loan”). TMAC made
a drawdown of $15,000,000 on December 18, 2013. (notes 10 and 18);
Newmont Royalty Agreement that provides for the 1% Newmont NSR smelter royalty retained by
HBML on all saleable metals produced by TMAC from Hope Bay and an area of interest surrounding
the Hope Bay property (note 18);
Transition Services Agreement whereby TMAC can request assistance from Newmont at TMAC'’s
expense for certain services for a specified period of time ending on September 30, 2013 (note 18);
and,
Investor Rights Agreement providing Newmont and TMAC certain rights with respect to the board of
directors of TMAC and the Common Shares of TMAC (note 18).

The aggregate fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed on acquisition date were as follows:

$000s
Purchase price:
57,400,000 Common Shares 450,000
Net assets acquired:
Consumables, materials and supplies 7,919
Property 203,660
Plant and equipment 246,547
Mobile equipment 5,456
Ore in stockpiles 2,798
Goodwill 80,600
Environmental rehabilitation liabilities (16,380)
Deferred tax liabilities (80,600)
Total net assets 450,000

In accordance with IFRS 3, “Business Combinations”, the acquisition of Hope Bay by TMAC was
determined to be a business combination with TMAC being the acquirer of Hope Bay and, accordingly,
was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. The results of operations are included in
the Statement of Profit or Loss from the date of the acquisition.
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Fair values have been estimated using a variety of methods as listed below for significant balances:

Asset Acquired or Liability = Method of Determining Fair Value Fair Value
Assumed $000s
Consumables, materials and  Estimated primarily using a replacement cost 7,919
supplies approach based on inventory records and the
selling price for comparable items.
Property Estimated discounted cash flows and value of 203,660
comparable transactions to estimate the fair value
of mineral resources and licenses based on a third
party valuation report.
Plant and equipment Estimated primarily using a replacement cost 246,547
approach based on fixed asset records and asset
valuation reports.
Mobile equipment Estimated primarily using a replacement cost 5,456
approach based on fixed asset records and asset
valuation reports.
Ore in stockpiles Based on estimated recoverable value of contained 2,798
metal less estimated processing, refining, shipping,
and selling costs.
Goodwill Estimated pursuant to IFRS. 80,600
Environmental rehabilitation Estimated from a third party environmental 16,380
liabilities rehabilitation liability report using assumptions
about inflation rates, life of assets and discount
rate.
Deferred tax liabilities Estimated based on assumed marginal tax rates on 80,600

difference between Purchase Consideration and
transferred tax attributes.

From the date of Closing of the acquisition, no revenues and a net loss of $nil were generated by the
Hope Bay operations. Had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the fiscal year, TMAC'’s pro
forma revenue from Hope Bay would be $nil and pro forma net loss would have been $nil for the fourteen
months ended December 31, 2013. TMAC incurred transaction costs totaling $1,176,000 related to the

acquisition of Hope Bay all of which were expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss in 2013.

4. Amounts receivable

December December

31, 2014 31, 2013

$000s $000s

Recoverable sales tax 248 404
Other 547 2
795 406

TMAC RESOURCES INC.
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5. Consumables, materials and supplies

December December
31, 2014 31, 2013
$000s $000s
Consumables 7,050 5,864
Materials and supplies 1,653 1,233
8,703 7,097
6. Property, plant and equipment
Exploration
Plant and Mobile and
December 31, 2014 Property equipment equipment evaluation Total
$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2014 205,183 248,498 6,421 24,092 484,194
Additions
- Acquisition and engineering - 2,635 359 4,566 7,560
- Camp and logistics - - - 7,389 7,389
- Capitalized depreciation - - - 552 552
- Drilling and Assaying - - - 18,918 18,918
- Environment - - - 5,965 5,965
- Evaluation - - - 892 892
- Geology - - - 1,124 1,124
- Share based payments - - - 725 725
- Property holding 1,676 - - - 1,676
- Environmental Liability
Adjustment 6,646 - - - 6,646
Transfer to equipment held for sale - (8,538) - - (8,538)
Balance at December 31, 2014 213,505 242,595 6,780 64,223 527,103
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at January 1, 2014 - 287 211 - 498
Depreciation - 246 306 - 552
Balance at December 31, 2014 - 533 517 - 1,050
Net book value at December 31,
2014 213,505 242,062 6,263 64,223 526,053
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Exploration
Plant and Mobile and
December 31, 2013 Property equipment equipment  evaluation Total
$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s
Cost
Balance at October 30, 2012 - - - - -
Acquisition of Hope Bay (note 3) 203,660 246,547 5,456 - 455,663
Additions
- Acquisition and engineering - 1,293 506 - 1,799
- Camp and logistics - 658 459 8,214 9,331
- Capitalized depreciation - - - 498 498
- Dirilling and Assaying - - - 10,789 10,789
- Environment - - - 3,290 3,290
- Evaluation - - - 612 612
- Geology - - - 689 689
- Property holding 1,523 - - - 1,523
Balance at December 31, 2013 205,183 248,498 6,421 24,092 484,194
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at October 30, 2012 - - - - -
Depreciation - 287 211 - 498
Balance at December 31, 2013 - 287 211 - 498
Net book value at December 31,
2013 205,183 248,211 6,210 24,092 483,696

As at December 31, 2014, all of TMAC's projects are currently considered to be in the exploration and
evaluation stage.

Hope Bay is located approximately 685 kilometers (“km”) northeast of Yellowknife, Northwest Territories
and approximately 125 km southwest of Cambridge Bay, Nunavut Territory and is situated east of
Bathurst Inlet, Nunavut Territory. Hope Bay lies approximately 160 km above the Arctic Circle, comprises
an area of 1,101 km? and forms one large contiguous block of land that is approximately 80 km by 20 km
in size. Hope Bay mineral tenure includes Federal (the “Crown”) mineral claims, Crown mining leases,
pending Crown mining leases and Inuit exploration agreements.

Nunavut Tunngavik Inc. (“NTI"), the organization which coordinates and manages Inuit responsibilities
set out in the Nunavut Land Claims Agreement (“NLCA”), holds the surface title and subsurface mineral
rights to Inuit-Owned Lands in the Kitikmeot Region of Nunavut, including the surface rights over the
entire Hope Bay area and subsurface mineral rights over selected portions of Hope Bay as described
above. The KIA administers the surface rights and the Inuit Impact Benefit Agreement (“IIBA”") associated
with Hope Bay. The IIBA provides guidelines for Inuit employment and Inuit contractor involvement at
Hope Bay, and provides for certain payments to the KIA for administration of the IIBA. In addition, TMAC
assumed from Newmont the rights and obligations of the surface rights lease agreement (the
“Commercial Lease”) with the KIA that governs surface access rights and compensation that is payable
to the KIA for that access. The Commercial Lease, which has a five year term commencing September
13, 2013, permits TMAC to commence production at the Doris deposit. Payments to the KIA for use of
the surface lands are incurred for quarrying fees, water usage, habitat disturbance and wildlife
conservation.
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Hope Bay is comprised of the Roberts Bay port, the Doris, Madrid and Boston gold bearing mineral
deposits and other areas of mineralized interest. Roberts Bay is located approximately five km from the
Doris site and is the port entry point from the north-west passage. The facility includes a cargo offloading
jetty, a diesel fuel offloading facility, fuel storage tanks, and a large lay down area for equipment and
supplies. Existing infrastructure at Hope Bay includes gravel airstrips at Doris and Boston, power plants,
camp facilities at both Doris and Boston, an all year haul road from Roberts Bay to Doris and through to
Madrid, and permitted tailings facility.

A partially completed modular mill is currently stored in Durban, South Africa and mill grinding equipment
is stored in Baltimore, USA. In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Board of Directors approved the sale of the
mill and related equipment. The process of selling this equipment has commenced and it has been
classified as plant and equipment held for sale in the Statement of Financial Position. The equipment has
been recorded at the estimated net realizable value using third party estimates, resulting in an impairment
of $4,535,000.

NTI owns approximately 50% of the subsurface mineral claims at Hope Bay with the other 50% owned
by the Crown. The ownership of mineral rights is allocated approximately as follows: Doris - 100% by NTI;
Madrid - 50%/50% shared mineral rights between NTI and the Crown; Boston and southwards -100%
owned by the Crown. As NTl is a private owner of the Inuit owned subsurface mineral rights, royalty rates
for the NTI's mineral rights are an annual 12% net profits interest royalty from any production, with the
calculation of the amount being subject to a limit in the allowable deductions per annum. A production
lease is a necessary prerequisite in order to commence production. Crown lands are subject to a sliding
scale net profits interest royalty of up to 13%; however, there is no limit to the allowable deductions.

Newmont has retained the 1% Newmont NSR on commercial production from the Hope Bay Project area
of interest. TMAC has a right of first refusal on any sale of the Newmont NSR.

Newmont has a general security agreement in place for the Letters of Credit (note 9).

Cash additions of assets in the exploration and evaluation stage, adjusted for non-cash working capital
movements, amounted to $43,302,000 (2013 - $26,150,000).

7. Goodwill

The goodwill balance of $80,600,000 relates to the acquisition of Hope Bay (note 3) and is the result of
the requirement under business combinations accounting to recognize a deferred income tax liability for
the difference between the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired and their tax base
(note 3). Goodwill has been allocated to the Hope Bay CGU for impairment testing purposes. An
impairment test was performed on the CGU at December 31, 2014. The recoverable amount was
determined by estimating the fair value less costs of disposal through a discounted cash flow analysis on
the Doris, Madrid and Boston deposits over 20 years along with a comparable transaction value analysis
for the rest of the Hope Bay property. The following significant assumptions were used in the discounted
cash flow analysis: US$1,250/ounce (2013: US$1,300/ounce) for the price of gold based on an average
of analysts’ forecasts; 6% discount rate (2013: 6%); and, 1.18 foreign exchange rate (2013: 1.08) for the
Canadian dollar relative to the United States dollar based on market forecasts. The test showed no
impairment for Hope Bay at December 31, 2014.

The effects of a change in any single assumption does not fairly reflect the impact on a CGU'’s fair value

as the assumptions are interdependent. For example, a change in the gold price could result in a change
in the mine plan and future capital expenditures.
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8.

10.

Other

Other assets consists of an ore stockpile on surface valued at $2,798,000 that also represents its net
realizable value and $1,704,000 of prepayments for equipment.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

December December

31, 2014 31, 2013

$000s $000s

Trade payables 3,291 659
Accrued liabilities 3,162 1,144
6,453 1,803

Newmont Loan

Year ended Period ended

December December

31,2014 31, 2013

$000s

Balance at the beginning of the period 14,369 -
Proceeds from drawdown on December 19, 2013 - 15,000
Convertible option classified as equity - (679)
Prepayment (15,265) -
Convertible option de-recognized on prepayment 460 -
Accrued interest 436 48
- 14,369

The Newmont Loan is a compound financial instrument and accordingly, at inception a liability and equity
component were recognized. Deferred taxes of $183,000 were recognized on the $679,000 convertible
option value, resulting in a net adjustment of $496,000 in the Statement of Changes in Shareholders’
Equity.

In conjunction with the Second Equity Financing (as defined below in note 14(b)(vi), TMAC issued
Newmont a notice of prepayment of the Newmont Loan advising that TMAC would prepay the entire
outstanding amount of the Newmont Loan plus interest on April 28, 2014. Newmont declined to convert
the Newmont Loan to Common Shares and TMAC paid Newmont $15,265,000, whereupon the Newmont
Loan was cancelled and the Newmont general security agreement with respect to the Newmont Loan
was discharged.

The prepayment was allocated to the liability and equity components of the Newmont Loan in the same
manner used to allocate the proceeds at the inception of the loan. On prepayment, deferred taxes of
$124,000 were recognized on the $460,000 convertible option value as determined on the prepayment
date. The remaining balance of the reserve for the equity component of $161,000 was offset against the
deficit in the Statement of Changes in Equity.
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11. Other liabilities

Other liabilities relate to the unamortized premium attributable to the proceeds received from the issuance

of flow-through Common Shares.

Year ended Period ended

December December

31, 2014 31, 2013

$000s

Balance at the beginning of the period - -
Premium from flow-through Common Shares issued (note 14(b)) 497 511
Reduction for qualifying exploration expenditures incurred (109) (511)
388 -

12. Provision for environmental rehabilitation

Year ended Period ended
December December
31, 2014 31, 2013
$000s $000s
Balance at the beginning of the period 16,681 -
Business combination (note 3) - 16,380
Adjustment in assumptions 6,646 -
Accretion 433 301
23,760 16,681

Provision is made for mine closure and environmental rehabilitation costs, which include the dismantling
and demolition of infrastructure, removal of residual materials and remediation of disturbed areas, in the
financial period when the related environmental disturbance occurs based on the estimated future costs

using information available at the period end date.

The assumptions used in calculating the amount of the provision are adjusted for significant changes
every reporting period as indicated in the table below and could result in significant changes in the carrying

value of the liability.

Assumptions:
December December
31, 2014 31, 2013
$000s $000s
Undiscounted and un-inflated amount of estimated cash flows 24,719 24,719
Payable in 2048 2048
Inflation rate 2.0% 1.3%
Discount rate 2.2% 2.5%

Newmont provided Letters of Credit associated with TMAC'’s environmental rehabilitation obligations
under the permits that are held by Aboriginal Affairs and Northern Development Canada, the Department

of Fisheries and Oceans and the KIA (note 18).
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13. Income taxes

December December

31,2014 31, 2013

$000s $000s

Current income tax expense - -
Deferred income tax expense (recovery) (3,209) (364)
Income tax expense (recovery) (3,209) (364)

Reconciliation between the tax expense and accounting profit for the year:

Year ended Period ended
December December
31, 2014 31, 2013
$000s $000s
Earnings (loss) before income taxes (12,667) (3,517)
Canadian federal and provincial income tax rates 27% 27%
Income tax expense (recovery) at statutory rates (3,420) (949)
Non-deductible expenses (non-taxable income) 529 3
Nunavut mining royalties (444) (79)
Flow-through share renunciation 126 661
Deferred income tax expense (recovery) (3,209) (364)
Effective tax rate 25% 10%
Reconciliation of the deferred tax balance movement:
Year ended Period ended
December 31, December
2014 31, 2013
$000s $000s
Balance at the beginning of the period 80,300 -
Acquisition of Hope Bay (note 3) - 80,600
Share issue costs (note 14(b)) (1,048) (630)
Newmont Loan (note 10) (124) 183
Premium on flow-through shares (note 11) 109 511
Deferred tax recovery in Statement of Profit or Loss (3,209) (364)
Balance at December 31, 2013 76,028 80,300

The significant components of TMAC's deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December December

31, 2014 31, 2013

Deferred income tax liabilities (assets) $000s $000s
Inventory 707 1,187
Property, plant and equipment 103,110 101,555
Newmont Loan - 177
Provision for environmental rehabilitation (9,324) (6,546)
Deferred Nunavut royalties (14,636) (14,795)
Tax losses (2,626) (795)
Share issue costs (1,203) (483)
Net deferred income tax liabilities 76,028 80,300
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Deferred taxes of $124,000 were recognized on the prepayment of the Newmont Loan (note 10), resulting
in a net adjustment of $496,000 in the Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity.

Deferred taxes of $1,048,000 (2013: $630,000) were recognized on share issue costs of $3,878,000
(2013: $2,331,000) in the Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity (note 14(b)(vi) and 14(b)(viii)).

TMAC has federal and provincial non-capital loss carryforwards totaling approximately $9.7 million that
expire between 2032 and 2034.

14. Share capital and reserves
(a) Authorized
TMAC is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares.
At the annual and special meeting of shareholders of TMAC on June 26, 2014, the shareholders approved
a motion to amend the Company’s articles of incorporation to remove the Non-Voting Shares as an
authorized class of shares in the capital of the Company thereby resulting in only one class of Common
Shares.

(b) Issued and outstanding

TMAC had the following issued and outstanding Common Shares:

Total

Number of Number of Number of Value of
Voting  Non-Voting Common Common
shares Shares Shares Shares
# # # $000s

Balance at incorporation on October
30, 2012 (i) 100 - 100 -
Private placement (ii) 999,900 - 999,900 -
Share split (ii) 11,600,000 - 11,600,000 -
Acquisition of Hope Bay (iv) 24,000,305 33,399,695 57,400,000 450,000
Initial Equity Financing (v) 11,496,499 - 11,496,499 32,788
Initial Equity Financing Rights (v) 1,022,024 - 1,022,024 -
Balance at December 31, 2013 49,118,828 33,399,695 82,518,523 482,788
Second Equity Financing (vi) 44,377,700 - 44,377,700 74,997
Conversion of non-voting shares (vii) 33,399,695  (33,399,695) - -
Third Equity Financing (viii) 1,550,000 - 1,550,000 2,546
Balance at December 31, 2014 128,446,223 - 128,446,223 560,331

(i) Incorporation

TMAC was incorporated on October 30, 2012 with the issuance of 100 Common Shares with an
aggregate value of $1.00.
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(ii) Private placement

On January 22, 2013, TMAC issued 999,900 Common Shares to various executive officers and the
sole director of the Company and the TMAC Share Purchase Trust at a nominal value.

(iii) Share split

On March 8, 2013, the shareholders approved a resolution whereby the 1,000,000 then issued and
outstanding Common Shares were divided on the basis of 1 existing Common Share for 12.6
Common Shares, thereby issuing an additional 11,600,000 Common Shares to the existing
shareholders, all of which were officers and/or a director of TMAC.

In addition, on March 8, 2013, the shareholders approved a resolution whereby the authorized share
capital was increased by creating an unlimited number of Non-Voting Shares.

(iv) Acquisition of Hope Bay

On March 12, 2013, pursuant to the Transaction Agreement TMAC issued 57,400,000 Common
Shares to Newmont for an aggregate Purchase Consideration of $450,000,000 (note 3).

(v) Initial Equity Financing

Immediately after Closing of the Transaction Agreement (note 3), TMAC completed a private
placement of 10,220,240 Common Shares (the “Non-FT Shares”) at $3.00/share, for gross proceeds
of $30,661,000, and 1,276,259 of flow-through Common Shares (the “FT Shares”) at $3.40/share,
for gross proceeds of $4,339,000, for an aggregate amount of $35,000,000. Costs associated with
the completion of the Non-FT Shares issuance totaled $2,331,000 ($1,701,000 after deferred income
taxes of $630,000) and were charged to share capital on the Statement of Changes in Shareholders’
Equity.

The subscription agreement for the FT Shares requires TMAC to incur $4,339,000 of qualifying CEE
and renounce the CEE to the FT Shares shareholders with an effective date of December 31, 2013,
which renunciation was made in January 2014. The $0.40/share premium of the FT Shares over the
Non-FT Shares resulted in an other liability in the amount of $511,000 which amount reduced share
capital (note 11).

The subscription agreement for the Non-FT Shares states that each Non-FT Share had attached to
it one right (a “Right”) that entitled the shareholder to receive one-tenth of a Common Share of TMAC
for no additional consideration in the event that a “Liquidity Event” (as defined below) did not occur
on or before October 31, 2013. TMAC did not complete a Liquidity Event by October 31, 2013 and,
accordingly, the Rights were exercised and 1,022,024 Common Shares were issued.

(vi) Second Equity Financing

On April 28, 2014, the Company completed a second equity financing (the “Second Equity
Financing”) of 43,943,700 Common Shares (the “Second Non-FT Shares”) at $1.75/share, for
gross proceeds of $76,901,000, and 434,000 of flow-through Common Shares (the “Second FT
Shares”) at $2.00/share, for gross proceeds of $868,000, for an aggregate amount of $77,769,000.
Costs associated with the completion of the Non-FT Shares issuance totaled $3,648,000
($2,663,000 after deferred income taxes of $985,000) and were charged to share capital on the
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity.
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Resource Capital Fund VI L.P. (“RCF"), a private equity investment firm, acquired 37,200,000 of the

Second Non-FT Shares for a total of $65,100,000 which, immediately after closing of this financing

resulted in RCF owning approximately 29.3%, and Newmont owning 45.2%, of the issued and

outstanding Common Shares, respectively. In accordance with the RCF subscription agreement,

RCF was granted certain investor rights, including:

- Provided that RCF owns greater than or equal to 10% of TMAC's issued and outstanding
Common Shares, RCF has the right to participate in any equity financing offering that TMAC
engages in up to such number of Common Shares that will allow RCF to maintain a percentage
ownership interest in the outstanding Common Shares that is the same as the RCF ownership
percentage immediately prior to completion of the offering;

The Board shall have no more than 10 members;

Provided that RCF owns greater than or equal to 10% of TMAC's issued and outstanding
Common Shares, RCF has the right to nominate one Board member. Should RCF own greater
than or equal to 30% of TMAC's issued and outstanding Common Shares, RCF has the right to
nominate one additional independent Board member, and;

Voting its Common Shares in favour of TMAC’s stock option plan and restricted share plan at
TMAC'’s 2014 and 2015 annual general meetings of shareholders.

In addition, the Investor Rights Agreement with Newmont was amended to permit Newmont to vote
their Common Shares at their discretion under all circumstances other than for share-based payment
compensation at TMAC’s 2014 and 2015 respective annual general meetings of shareholders.

The subscription agreement for the Second FT Shares requires TMAC to incur $868,000 of qualifying
Canadian Exploration Expenditures (“CEE”) and renounce the CEE to the Second FT Shares
shareholders with an effective date of December 31, 2014 (note 21). The $0.25/share premium of
the Second FT Shares results in an other liability in the amount of $109,000. TMAC incurred sufficient
qualifying flow-through expenditures from April 28, 2014 to June 30, 2014 and recorded the reversal
of the liability of $109,000 as a deferred tax recovery.

(vii) Conversion of non-voting shares

On June 5, 2014, Newmont converted its 33,399,695 Non-Voting Shares into 33,399,695 Voting
Shares which resulted in Newmont owning 45.2% of the Voting Shares of the Company (note 3).

(viii) Third Equity Financing

On December 30, 2014, the Company completed the first of two tranches (“Tranche 1”) of a third
equity financing (the “Third Equity Financing”). Tranche 1 was comprised of 1,550,000 of flow-
through Common Shares (the “Third FT Shares”) at $2.00/share, for gross proceeds of $3,100,000.
The $0.25/share premium of the Third FT Shares results in an other liability in the amount of
$388,000. Costs associated with the completion of the Third FT Shares issuance totaled $228,000
($166,000 after offsetting deferred income taxes of $62,000) and were charged to share capital on
the Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity.

The second tranche (“Tranche 2”) was completed subsequent to year end on January 16, 2015, and

was comprised of 23,443,572 Common Shares (the “Third Non-FT Shares”) at $1.75/share, for
gross proceeds of $41,026,250 (note 21).
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(c) Share-based payment plans

TMAC has a share option purchase plan (the “SOP”) and a restricted share plan (the “RSP”), (collectively
the “Share Plans”).

(i) Share purchase option plan

On January 22, 2013, the shareholders of TMAC adopted the SOP under which the Board is
authorized to grant share purchase options of Common Shares (“Options”) to directors, officers,
employees and consultants. Pursuant to the SOP, TMAC may not have more than 10% of the issued
and outstanding Common Shares reserved for incentive Share Plans at any time. The significant
terms of the SOP are as follows:
The exercise price per Common Share shall be determined by the Board at the time the Option
is granted, but, in any event, if the Common Shares are listed on a stock exchange at the time
of grant, the exercise price shall not be less than the closing price of the Common Shares on
the stock exchange on the trading day immediately preceding the day of the grant of the Option;
The Board may at any time authorize the granting of Options subject to the provisions of the
SOP. The date of each grant of Options shall be determined by the Board when the grant is
authorized; and,
The Board may grant Options with a specified vesting period; however, all Options must be
exercisable during a period not extending beyond five years from the date of the Option grant.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that an Option will expire within, or within two days
of, a trading blackout period imposed by the Company, the expiry date of the Option will be
automatically extended to the 10t business day following the end of the blackout period.

Weighted

average

Number of exercise

options price

# #

Balance at October 30, 2012 and December 31, 2013 - -
Granted 5,072,000 1.75
Forfeited (382,000) 1.75
Options at December 31, 2014 4,690,000 1.75

On April 28, 2014, TMAC granted share purchase options with an exercise price of $1.75 per option
to the directors, officers and employees of the Company. The share purchase options vestin 3 equal
tranches, with the first vesting immediately and the remaining two vesting on each of the following
two anniversaries of the grant. The options expire on April 28, 2019.

On June 26, 2014, TMAC granted share purchase options with an exercise price of $1.75 per option
to newly appointed officers and employees of the Company. The share purchase options vest in 3
equal tranches, with the first vesting immediately and the remaining two vesting on each the
following two anniversaries of the grant. The options expire on June 26, 2019.

On September 22, 2014, TMAC granted share purchase options with an exercise price of $1.75 per
option to newly appointed officers of the Company. The share purchase options vest in 3 equal
tranches, with the first vesting immediately and the remaining two vesting on each of the following
two anniversaries of the grant. The options expire on September 22, 2019.
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As at December 31, 2014, share purchase options granted and still outstanding were as follows:

Awards outstanding Awards exercisable
Grant date Quantity Remaining Exercise Quantity Remaining Exercise
contractual price contractual price

life life

# Years $ # Years $
Apr 28, 2014 4,085,000 4.32 1.75 1,361,674 4.32 1.75
Jun 26, 2014 305,000 4.48 1.75 101,667 4.48 1,75
Sep 22, 2014 300,000 4.99 1.75 100,000 4.73 1.75
4,690,000 4.36 1.75 1,563,008 4.36 1.75

The fair value of the Company’s options granted during the year ended December 31, 2014 were
estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing method using the following weighted average

assumptions:

December 31,

2014

Risk free interest rate 1.18% - 1.19%
Expected dividend yield 0%
Expected volatility @ 71% - 72%
Expected life 3 years
Forfeiture rate 0%

(1) The expected volatility was calculated using the historical share price movement of comparable publically traded companies considered to be

included in TMAC's peer group over the same period as the expected life of the option being valued.

The grant date fair values of share purchase options granted to personnel directly involved in the
Company’s projects are capitalized over the vesting period; share-based payment costs for all other
options are expensed over the vesting period. The fair values of share purchase options expensed
and capitalized during the year are as follows:

December

31, 2014
$000s

Expensed 1,948
Capitalized 725

2,673

The total fair value of unvested options that will be recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss or
capitalized as exploration and evaluation assets in future periods amounts to $1,352,000 as at
December 31, 2014.

(i) Restricted share plan

On January 22, 2013, the shareholders of TMAC adopted the RSP under which the Board (or a
committee designated by the Board) is authorized to grant restricted shares rights (the “Restricted
Share Rights”) to directors, officers, employees and consultants. The RSP provides for the
acquisition of Common Shares by participants for the purpose of advancing the interests of the
Company through the motivation, attraction and retention of employees, officers, directors and
consultants of the Company. Pursuant to the RSP, TMAC may not have more than 10% of the issued
and outstanding Common Shares reserved for incentive Share Plans at any time. The significant
terms of the RSP are as follows:
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The Board may grant Restricted Share Rights to acquire from the Company any number of
fully paid and non-assessable Common Shares as a discretionary payment for past services
to the Corporation or as an incentive for future services, subject to the provisions of the RSP;

Each Restricted Share Right entitles the holder to receive one Common Share, without
payment of additional consideration, at the end of the restricted period or, if applicable, at a
later deferred payment date. The Board will determine the restricted period applicable to each
Restricted Share Right grant;

Restricted Share Rights may be subject to performance conditions to be achieved by the
Company or by the holder within a restricted period for the holder thereof to receive the
underlying Common Shares; and,

A Restricted Share Rights holder may elect to defer the receipt of all or any part of the
underlying Common Shares until a selected deferred payment date.

As at December 31, 2014, no Restricted Share Rights had been granted by the Board.
(d) Earnings (loss) per share

The impact of outstanding potentially dilutive instruments are excluded from the diluted share
calculation for loss per share amounts as they are anti-dilutive.

(e) Nature and purpose of reserves
The reserve for the equity component of the Newmont Loan is comprised of the amount allocated to
equity for the Newmont Loan that is convertible into Common Shares at the option of Newmont. The

Newmont Loan was repaid on April 28, 2014 and the facility cancelled. (note 10).

15. Finance income and expense

Year ended Period ended

December December
31,2014 31, 2013
$000s $000s
Finance income

Interest income (430) (170)

Finance expense
Accretion of environmental rehabilitation costs (note 12) 433 301
Newmont Loan (note 10) 436 48
Letters of credit (note 18(iv)) 819 32
1,688 381
Net finance costs 1,258 211

Interest is earned from short-term demand deposit accounts from a major Canadian bank.
16. Management of Capital
TMAC's objectives with respect to managing its capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going

concern by raising sufficient funds to finance ongoing mineral property exploration and evaluation
investments so that it can provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.
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The Company defines capital as total equity plus long-term debt. Total equity is comprised of share
capital, reserves and accumulated deficit. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. As TMAC does not currently have cash flow from operating activities, to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may issue new shares, raise debt or sell assets to raise capital.

In order to maximize ongoing exploration and evaluation activities, the Company does not pay dividends.
TMAC'’s cash management policy permits investment of its surplus cash resources in demand deposit
accounts with large Canadian chartered banks, in highly-liquid short-term guaranteed investment
certificates with large Canadian Chartered banks or in highly-liquid short-term Government of Canada
issued treasury bills with maturities of 90 days or less from the original date of investment.

There were no changes in the Company’s capital management strategy during the year ended December
31, 2014 compared to the previous fiscal year. TMAC is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

December 31, December 31,

2014 2013

$000s $000s

Equity 553,470 480,131
Debt - 14,369
553,470 494,500

17. Financial instruments and risk management
(a) Financial instruments hierarchy and fair values

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy with respect to required disclosures about the inputs to fair
value measurements are:
Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly
or indirectly; and,
Level 3 — Inputs that are not based on observable market data.

TMAC's financial assets and liabilities are recorded and measured as follows:

Subsequent
Asset or Liability Category Measurement
Cash and cash equivalents Fair value through profit or loss Fair value
Amounts receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost
Accounts payables and accrued
liabilities Other liabilities Amortized cost

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, amounts receivable and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities reflected in the Statement of Financial Position approximate fair value because of the short-term
maturity of these financial instruments and are classified as Level 1 in accordance with the fair value
hierarchy.
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(b) Commodity price risk

TMAC's ability to develop its properties and its future profitability are directly related to the market price
of gold. The price of gold is affected by numerous factors including global consumption and demand for
gold, international economic and political trends, fluctuations in the value of the US dollar and other
currencies, interest rates and inflation. The current and forecast price of gold is a key factor in determining
if the property, plant and equipment and goodwill are impaired at each period end date.

(c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that TMAC will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come due and
that TMAC will be forced to sell financial assets at a value that is less than what they are worth or the
Company may be unable to settle or recover a financial asset at all.

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rests with the Board, which has approved an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for management of the Company’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity requirements. The Company’s cash requirements and balances are projected based
on estimated future requirements. TMAC plans to meet these requirements through a mix of available
funds, equity financing, sale of mining assets and project debt financing. Continuing operations are
dependent on the Company’s ability in the near term to access sufficient capital to complete TMAC's
exploration and evaluation activities, identify commercial gold reserves and to ultimately have profitable
operations. All accounts payable and accrued liabilities at December 31, 2014 have contractual maturities
of less than 90 days and are subject to normal trade terms. At period end, TMAC had sufficient funds to
settle these liabilities.

(d) Credit Risk

Credit risk arises when a failure by counterparties to discharge their obligations could reduce the amount
of future cash inflows from financial assets on hand at the period end date. TMAC'’s financial assets are
cash and cash equivalents and amounts receivables. Management considers the credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents to be limited because the counterparty is an established well-known major Canadian
chartered bank. During the period ended December 31, 2014, there were minimal amounts receivable,
no allowance for bad debts was required on the amounts receivable and no amounts were past due as
the receivables were primarily comprised of recoverable value added sales taxes. The Company did not
have any customers or trade receivables at December 31, 2014. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
December 31, 2014 is represented by the carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents and amounts
receivable on the Statement of Financial Position.

(e) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that a variation in the exchange rates between the Canadian dollar and
foreign currencies could affect TMAC’s operating and financial results. TMAC is exposed to foreign
currency risk as the Company holds small amounts of cash in US dollars and has other financial liabilities
that are denominated in either US dollars or other foreign currencies. TMAC’s management monitors the
exchange rate fluctuations on a regular basis and, to date, has not used currency derivative instruments
to manage its exposure to foreign currency fluctuations.
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At December 31, 2014, the carrying amounts of TMAC'’s foreign currency-denominated net financial
assets were approximately as follows:

Effect of a 10%

Net financial change in

Assets/ exchange rates

(liabilities) on loss

$000s $000s

Australian dollar (27) 3)
South African Rand (10) Q)
US dollar 56 6

(f) Interest rate risk

TMAC's accounts payable and accrued liabilities are non-interest bearing and have contractual maturities
of less than 90 days.

As at December 31, 2014, TMAC's interest bearing assets are cash and cash equivalents and are
invested in demand deposit accounts with a large Canadian chartered bank.

18. Related party transactions
(a) Transactions with Newmont

Newmont is a related party as a result of its ownership interest in TMAC’s Common Shares. The
transactions with Newmont are as follows;

Transitional Payments on Letters of

services (i) behalf of TMAC Credit (iv) Total

$000s $000s $000s $000s

Balance at October 30, 2012 - - - -
Transactions 1,201 474 31 1,706
Payments (1,201) (474) (32) (1,706)
Balance at December 31, 2013 - - - -
Transactions - 447 830 1,277
Payments - (447) (449) (896)
Balance at December 31, 2014 - - 381 381

(i) Transition services

On March 12, 2013, in conjunction with the Transaction Agreement, Newmont and TMAC entered
into a Transition Services Agreement whereby TMAC could request assistance from Newmont at
TMAC'’s expense for certain services for a specified period of time ending on September 30, 2013.
Newmont made available certain Newmont employees for secondment to TMAC until September 30,
2013, after which date they were either hired by TMAC or returned to Newmont. These employees
had specific skill sets that TMAC did not have at the time and were important for running the Hope
Bay site. The seconded employees were under the direction of TMAC. The secondees were charged
out by Newmont to TMAC at full cost reimbursement plus an administrative charge.

TMAC RESOURCES INC. Financial Statements 39



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(Expressed in Canadian dollars, except as otherwise noted)

(ii) The Investor Rights Agreement

The Investor Rights Agreement, dated March 12, 2013, provides Newmont and TMAC certain rights

with respect to the Board and the Common Shares as follows:

: From the date of Closing until the earlier of (i) 18 months from the closing of the IPO Financing;
and (i) the date on which the Newmont ownership percentage becomes less than 20%,
Newmont shall not, without the prior written consent of TMAC or except in certain limited
circumstances, acquire or agree to acquire or make any proposal to acquire any securities or
any material assets of TMAC,;

Newmont will not sell any of its Common Shares of TMAC for a period of 18 months following
the IPO Financing. Sales after that date may only be made in certain specified manners;
Provided that Newmont owns greater than or equal to 20% of TMAC's fully diluted Common
Shares, Newmont has the right to participate in any equity financing offering that TMAC engages
in to allow Newmont to maintain its then current percentage ownership interest. This
participation right does not apply to the IPO Financing, among other things;

For a period of 18 months after the IPO Financing, certain restrictions apply if Newmont wishes
to sell or otherwise dispose of a number of Common Shares held by Newmont which represents
greater than or equal to 5% of the then outstanding Common Shares in any 6 month period;
Subject to certain restrictions, Newmont will also have the right to piggy-back on any Common
Share issuance that TMAC wishes to do by way of a prospectus and, provided that Newmont
owns more than 20% of the fully diluted Common Shares, to require TMAC to file a prospectus;
The Board shall have no more than 10 members;

The Board shall initially have two nominees of Newmont. Provided that Newmont has an
ownership percentage greater than or equal to 20% Newmont may nominate two directors:
Should Newmont’s ownership percentage be greater than or equal to 10% but less than 20%,
Newmont may nominate one Board member; and,

For a period of two years after the closing of the IPO Financing, Newmont will not vote their
respective Common Shares at meetings of TMAC shareholders against management’s
recommendations, except in the case of fundamental changes, acquisitions, financings and
change of control transactions, in which case Newmont will be entitled to vote their respective
Common Shares at their discretion.

(ili) Newmont Loan

The Newmont Loan of $15,000,000 was fully drawn down on December 19, 2013 and repaid with
interest on April 28, 2014 (note 10).

(iv) Letters of Credit

TMAC agreed to indemnify Newmont for any funds expended in connection with draws made on the
Letters of Credit associated with TMAC's environmental rehabilitation obligations under the permits
that are held by Aboriginal Affairs and Northern Development Canada, the Department of Fisheries
and Oceans and the KIA (note 3). TMAC also agreed to permit Newmont to enter on and access
Hope Bay and to possess and use any of the Hope Bay assets for the purpose of conducting any
work required to ensure compliance with the environmental rehabilitation obligations under the
permits to the extent that TMAC does not conduct such work in a manner acceptable to Newmont,
acting reasonably, as in the opinion of Newmont is necessary or desirable to satisfy the obligations
that are secured by the Letters of Credit. TMAC will reimburse Newmont for its direct costs incurred
in performing this work. TMAC was to arrange for replacement bonds and/or letters of credit on or
before the earlier of 30 days following the closing of the IPO Financing and June 30, 2014. Until such
time as TMAC has arranged for the replacement bonds or letters of credit, Newmont shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to maintain (and shall cause any applicable affiliate of Newmont to
maintain) the applicable financial assurance and other financial sureties by continuing to meet its
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obligations under the Letters of Credit and obtaining any renewals or additions that may be
necessary. The Letters of Credit are secured by a general security agreement in favor of Newmont.

On December 5, 2014, TMAC and Newmont entered into an agreement whereby Newmont would
continue to maintain the Letters of Credit until December 31, 2015. Beginning with the calendar
quarter ending September 30, 2014, TMAC shall make a cash payment to Newmont on the 15th
calendar day after the last day of each calendar quarter in an amount equal to 8.4% of the average
of the aggregate of the face values of the Letters of Credit for such prior calendar quarter multiplied
by the number of days in the calendar quarter divided by 365. At TMAC's option up to 76.19% of the
amount due each calendar quarter (i.e. 6.4% of the 8.4%) may by paid by TMAC to Newmont by way
of Common Shares of an equivalent value, which value will be the issue price per Common Share in
the most recently completed equity financing conducted by TMAC that includes purchases by
persons who are not insiders of TMAC, with the rest (i.e. 2.0% of the 8.4%) being paid in cash. TMAC
made the payments for both the third and fourth quarter of 2014 in cash.

As at December 31, 2014, the amount of the Letters of Credit maintained by Newmont with respect
to the Hope Bay environmental rehabilitation obligations totaled approximately $18 million.

In addition to the approximately $18 million of Letters of Credit that Newmont maintains on behalf of
Hope Bay for environmental rehabilitation liabilities, Newmont had provided a corporate guarantee
to the KIA of up to $8.0 million of additional environmental rehabilitation assurance to, essentially,
provide twice the amount of assurance as required by the Federal regulators on certain aspects of
the Hope Bay site environmental rehabilitation (the “Overbonding Amount”). On September 13,
2013, TMAC and the KIA renewed the Commercial Lease on Hope Bay for a period of five years. In
conjunction with the renewal of the Commercial Lease, TMAC provided the KIA with a corporate
guarantee in the amount of $8.0 million with respect to the Overbonding Amount secured by a
general security agreement (the “KIA GSA”). The KIA GSA is in second position to Newmont's
general security agreement.

(v) Newmont NSR

As part of the Transaction Agreement, on March 12, 2013, HBML retained the Newmont NSR which
provides for a 1% net smelter royalty on all saleable metals produced by TMAC from Hope Bay and
an area of interest surrounding the Hope Bay property.

(b) Transaction with RCF
RCF is a related party as a result of its ownership interestin TMAC’s Common Shares. TMAC reimbursed
RCF for the $109,000 of out-of-pocket expenditures incurred by RCF during the completion of the due-

diligence performed on TMAC as part of their subscription for Common Shares in the Second Equity
Financing.

(c) Transactions with a director
The initial shareholder, director and president of the Company advanced $150,000 to TMAC in the period

prior to the Initial Equity Financing to fund TMAC's activities to that date. The advance did not bear interest
and was repaid shortly after completion of the Initial Equity Financing.
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(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The compensation of directors and other key members of management personnel during the year was as
follows:

Year ended
December
31, 2014
$000s

Management compensation 6,549
Directors fees 803

7,262

19. Segmented information
TMAC owns one mineral property, Hope Bay, operates in one geographic location, Nunavut, Canada and
in one industry, mining. Accordingly, the chief decision maker considers TMAC to currently have one
segment and, therefore, segmented information is not presented.

20. Commitments and contingencies

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s

Interest payments on Letters of Credit 1,524 - - - -
Capital expenditure commitments 10,735 - - - -
Minimum rental and lease payments 346 349 324 324 270
12,605 349 324 324 270

TMAC has estimated the required annual landholding payments and environmental compliance work for
Hope Bay to be approximately $1.7 million and $3.0 million, respectively. All of these payments are not
contractual commitments but are required to maintain the Company’s permits and land tenure agreements
in good standing. Certain parts of Doris are permitted as an operating mine site and environmental and
monitoring costs are required to maintain these permits. The landholding agreements with the KIA and
NTI were renewed for a 20 year term on March 30, 2015, effective March 30, 2015. (see note 21(d))

The Company has equipment stored in various locations including the partially completed processing
plant in South Africa. The equipment is stored on a month to month basis for an approximate cost of
$50,000 per month. The partially completed processing plant is held for sale.

The subscription agreement for the Third FT Shares requires TMAC to incur $3,100,000 of qualifying
CEE and renounce the CEE to the Third FT Shares shareholders with an effective date of December 31,
2014. The $0.25/share premium of the Third FT Shares over the Third Non-FT Shares results in a liability
in the amount of $388,000 which amount will be charged to share capital.

21. Subsequent events
(a) CEE Renunciation
In January 2015, TMAC filed with the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”), the forms renouncing, with an

effective date of December 31, 2014, the $868,000 of CEE to the second FT Share investors (note 14(vi)).
All of the CEE had been expended in 2014.
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In January 2015, TMAC filed with the CRA, the forms renouncing, with an effective date of December 31,
2014, the $3,100,000 of CEE to the third FT share investors (note 14(vii)). As at December 31, 2014,
none of the Third FT Shares funds had been expended. The company is to incur $3,100,000 of CEE
pursuant to the flow-through share agreement in 2015.

(b) Third Equity Financing

On January 16, 2015, the Company completed Tranche 2 of the Third Equity Financing consisting of
23,443,572 Common Shares at $1.75/share, for gross proceeds of $41,026,000, Costs associated with
the completion of the Third Non-FT Shares issuance will be charged to share capital on the Statement of
Changes in Shareholders’ Equity. RCF acquired 22,857,143 of the Third Non-FT Shares for a total of
$40,000,000 which, immediately after closing of this financing, results in RCF owning approximately
39.5%, and Newmont owning 37.8%, of the issued and outstanding Common Shares, respectively. There
were no changes in RCF’s rights from those acquired in the Second Equity Financing.

(c) Share-based payments

On March 17, 2015, TMAC granted 3,219,000 Options with a grant price of $1.75 per option to certain of
the directors, executives and employees of the Company. The options vest in 3 equal tranches, the first
vesting immediately and the remaining two vesting on each the following two anniversaries of the grant.
The options expire on March 17, 2020.

(d) Land tenure agreements

On March 30, 2015, TMAC entered into a Mineral Exploration Agreement (“MEA”) granting TMAC access
to the Inuit-owned subsurface mineral rights administered by NTI. Also on March 30, 2015, TMAC entered
into a Framework Agreement (“FA”) and an Inuit Impact Benefits Agreement (“llBA”) administered by the
KIA for surface access rights. Both the MEA and FA have 20 year terms. The MEA replaces the previous
agreements and all of the subsurface mineral rights within Hope Bay have been consolidated into a single
agreement. The MEA requires for annual rent payments to be made for the subsurface mineral rights and
a net profits interest royalty (note 6) for the extraction of the minerals. The FA replaces the current
agreements for land access and a new commercial lease has been issued for the mining of the Doris
dieposit. |
e
I = oth agreements provide certainty

to TMAC to obtain the required licenses to develop or mine current and possible future deposits on the
Hope Bay Belt, through reasonable administrative processes. The IIBA contains terms required under
the Nunavut Lands Claims Agreement to provide benefits to the Inuit from activities incurred on Inuit
owned land. These benefits include employment, training and contracting opportunities.
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Officers Contact Information

1. Catharine Farrow, Chief Executive Officer
95 Wellington Street West, Suite 1010, P.O. Box 44, Toronto, ON M5J 2N7
Office phone: 416-628-0216
Email address: catharine.farrow@tmacresources.com

2. Ron Gagel, Executive VP & Chief Financial Officer
95 Wellington Street West, Suite 1010, P.O. Box 44, Toronto, ON M5J 2N7
Office phone: 416-628-0216
Email address: ron.gagel@tmacresources.com

3. Jay Goldman, Secretary
2100 Scotia Plaza, 40 King Street West, Toronto, Ontario, M5H 3C2
Office phone: 416-860-6474
Email address: JGoldman@CasselsBrock.com

4. Dave King, VP Exploration & Geoscience
95 Wellington Street West, Suite 1010, P.O. Box 44, Toronto, ON M5J 2N7
Office phone: 416-628-0216
Email address: dave.king@tmacresources.com

5.  Terry MacGibbon
95 Wellington Street West, Suite 1010, P.O. Box 44, Toronto, ON M5J 2N7
Office phone: 416-628-0216
Email address: tmacgibbon@tmacresources.com

6. Julia Micks, Executive VP Human Resources
95 Wellington Street West, Suite 1010, P.O. Box 44, Toronto, ON M5J 2N7
Office phone: 416-628-0216
Email address: julia.micks@tmacresources.com

7. Gord Morrison, President & Chief Technology Officer
95 Wellington Street West, Suite 1010, P.O. Box 44, Toronto, ON M5J 2N7
Office phone: 416-628-0216
Email address: gord.morrison@tmacresources.com

8. M. John Roberts, VP, Environmental Affairs
95 Wellington Street West, Suite 1010, P.O. Box 44, Toronto, ON M5J 2N7
Office phone: 416-628-0216
Email address: john.roberts@tmacresources.com
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9. Maarten Theunissen, VP Finance
95 Wellington Street West, Suite 1010, P.O. Box 44, Toronto, ON M5J 2N7
Office phone: 416-628-0216
Email address: maarten.theunissen@tmacresources.com

10. Floyd Varley, VP Operations
95 Wellington Street West, Suite 1010, P.O. Box 44, Toronto, ON M5J 2N7
Office phone: 416-628-0216
Email address: floyd.varley@tmacresources.com
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ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT

STATUTS DE MODIFICATION

1. The name of the corporation is: (Set outin BLOCK CAPITAL LETTERS)
Dénomination sociale actuelle de la société (écrire en LETTRES MAJUSCULES SEULEMENT) :

Number of directors is/are:
Nombre d'administrateurs :

T|{M|A|C R|E|S |O|U|[R |C|E |S I [N|C
2. The name of the corporation is changed to (if applicable ): (Set out in BLOCK CAPITAL LETTERS)
Nouvelle dénominalion sociale de la société (s'il y a lieu) (écrire en LETTRES MAJUSCULES SEULEMENT) :
N |/ |A
3. Dale of incorporation/amalgamation:
Date de la constitution ou de la fusion :
2012/10/30
(Year, Month, Day)
(année, mois, jour)
4. Complete only if there is a change in the number of directors or the minimum / maximum number of directors.

I faut remplir cette partie seulement si le nombre d’administrateurs ou si le nombre minimal ou maximal
d’administrateurs a changé.

minimum and maximum number of directors is/are:
nombres minimum et maximum d'administrateurs :

Number minimum ___and __maximum
Nombre minimum___et  maximum
or
ou
5. The articles of the corporation are amended as follows:

Les statuts de la société sont modifiés de la fagon suivante :

See pages 1A to and including IN attached hereto and forming part of these Articles of Amendment.
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The Articles of the Corporation be and they are hereby amended by:

(@)

(c)

(d)

providing that the issued and outstanding 1,000,000 common shares of the
Corporation (the “Common Shares”) be divided, on the basis of 12.6 Common
Shares for each issued and outstanding Common Share, into 12,600,000
Common Shares;

increasing the authorized capital of the Corporation by creating an unlimited
number of non-voting common shares (the “Non-Voting Common Shares");

declaring that the authorized capital of the Corporation, after giving effect to the
foregoing, shall consist of an unlimited number of Common Shares and an
unlimited number of Non-Voting Common Shares; and

providing that the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attached to the
Common Shares and Non-Voting Common Shares are as follows:

COMMON SHARES

The rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions of the Common Shares are as set out
in this Part | and in Part Ill. Unless otherwise indicated, any reference to “Section” in
this Part | refers to a section of this Part I.

1.

Definitions

For purposes of this Part |, the following definitions shall apply:

1.1 "business day” means a day on which securities may be traded on the
stock exchange on which the Common Shares are then listed or if such
shares are not then listed, a day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or any
other day on which the principal chartered banks located in Toronto,
Ontario are not open for business;

1.2 “Common Shares” means the common shares in the share capital of the
Corporation;

1.3  “Corporation” means TMAC Resources Inc;

1.4  “Non-Voting Common Shares” means the non-voting common shares in
the share capital of the Corporation;

1.5 “Offer” means an offer to purchase Non-Voting Common Shares which
must, by reason of applicable securities legislation or by-laws, regulations
or policies of a stock exchange on which the Common Shares or Non-
Voting Common Shares are listed, be made to each holder of Non-Voting
Common Shares whose last address on the records of the Corporation is

Legal*8613925.8



1B

in a province or territory of Canada to which the relevant requirement
applies;

1.6  “Offer Date” means the date on which an Offer is made;
1.7 “Redemption Date” has the meaning given thereto in Section 5.4;

1.8 "Redemption Period” means the period of time commencing on the
seventh business day after the Offer Date and terminating on the last date
upon which holders of Non-Voting Common Shares may accept the Offer;
and

1.9 “Redemption Price” means the value of the consideration offered under
an Offer which, in the case of non cash consideration shall be determined
solely by the board of directors of the Corporation, acting reasonably.

2. Voting Rights

The holders of Common Shares shall be entitled to notice of, to attend and to one vote
per Common Share held at any meeting of the shareholders of the Corporation (other
than meetings of a class or series of shares of the Corporation other than the Common
Shares as such).

3. Dividends

The holders of Common Shares shall be entitled to receive dividends as and when
declared by the board of directors of the Corporation on the Common Shares as a
class, provided that no dividend may be declared in respect of, or any other benefit
conferred upon the holders of, Common Shares unless concurrently therewith the same
dividend per share in respect of, or the same benefit per share, is conferred upon the
holders of, the Non-Voting Common Shares determined as if all Non-Voting Common
Shares had been converted to Common Shares as of the date of determination.

4. Participation upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up

The holders of Common Shares and the holders of Non-Voting Common Shares shall
be entitled, in the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation,
whether voluntary or involuntary, or any other distribution of the assets of the
Corporation among its shareholders for the purpose of winding-up its affairs, to share
rateably in such assets of the Corporation as are available for distribution.

5. Redemptions

5.1 Subject to the provisions of this Section 5 and applicable law, if an Offer is
made, each outstanding Common Share shall be redeemed by the
Corporation at the Redemption Price per Common Share at the option of
the holder as provided in Section 5.4. The redemption right provided for in
this Section 5.1 may be exercised by notice in writing given to the
Corporation during the Redemption Period accompanied by the share
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certificate or certificates representing the Common Shares in respect of
which the holder desires to exercise such right of redemption, and such
notice shall be executed by the holder of the Common Shares registered
on the books of the Corporation, or by his duly authorized attorney, and
shall specify the number of Common Shares which the holder desires to
have redeemed. The holder shall pay any governmental or other tax
imposed on or in respect of such redemption. Upon receipt by the
Corporation of such notice and share certificate or certificates, the
Corporation shall issue or cause to be issued a cheque for the aggregate
Redemption Price to be paid to such holder (less any tax required to be
withheld) in accordance with Sections 5.2 and 5.4. If less than all of the
Common Shares represented by any share certificate are to be redeemed,
the holder shall be entitled to receive a new share certificate representing
in the aggregate the number of Common Shares represented by the
original share certificate which are not to be redeemed.

The redemption right provided for in Section 5.1 shall not come into effect
if:

(a) one or more shareholders of the Corporation who did not make or
act in concert with the person or persons making the Offer and
who, in the aggregate, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or
exercise control or direction over, not less than 50% of the
outstanding Non-Voting Common Shares, determine within five
business days after the Offer Date that he or they will continue to
so own or exercise control or direction over, in the aggregate, 50%
or more of the outstanding Non-Voting Common Shares;

(b)  contemporaneously with the Offer, an offer is made to the holders
of Common Shares upon the same terms and conditions as those
contained in the Offer, including the consideration to be paid to the
holders of Non-Voting Common Shares and the offer is for the
same percentage of Common Shares as the percentage of Non-
Voting Common Shares sought to be acquired under the Offer,
excluding in each case the nhumber of shares then owned by the
offeror;

(c) the board of directors of the Corporation determines within five
business days after the Offer Date that the Offer is not bona fide or
is made primarily for the purpose of causing the redemption right
provided for in Section 5.1 to come into effect and not primarily for
the purpose of acquiring Non-Voting Common Shares; or

(d)  the Offeris not completed in accordance with its terms;

provided that:
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in the case of Section 5.2(a), within six business days after the
Offer Date, a certificate signed by or on behalf of one or more
shareholders of the Corporation is delivered to the Secretary of the
Corporation confirming that: (A) such shareholders did not make or
act in concert with the person or persons making the Offer; (B) such
shareholders beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or exercise
control or direction over in the aggregate not less than 50% of the
outstanding Non-Voting Common Shares; and (C) such
shareholders have determined that they will not accept the Offer
and provided further that upon any variation of the Offer, including
an increase in price, such shareholders of the Corporation shall be
deemed not to have accepted the Offer as varied and the certificate
delivered by or on behalf of them as described above shall be
deemed to continue to apply and no further certificate need be filed
for purposes of these share provisions unless and until one or more
of such shareholders determine to accept the Offer as varied and
the result of such acceptance would be to reduce the aggregate
holdings of the remaining shareholders who delivered such
certificate to less than 50% of the outstanding Non-Voting Common
Shares in which case a certificate to that effect signed by or on
behalf of such shareholders who determine to accept the Offer as
varied shall be delivered to the Corporation forthwith after such
determination and, in any event, not less than five business days
prior to termination of the Redemption Period;

in the case of Section 5.2(c), provided that the Corporation has
appointed a transfer agent for the Common Shares, the Secretary
of the Corporation delivers to the transfer agent for the Common
Shares within six business days after the Offer Date a certified copy
of a resolution of the board of directors of the Corporation
determining that the Offer is not bona fide or is made primarily for
the purpose of causing the redemption right provided for in Section
5.1 to come into effect and not primarily for the purpose of acquiring
the Non-Voting Common Shares and stating the reason for such
determination; and

as soon as reasonably possible after the receipt of a certificate
under Section 5.2(e) or a certified copy of a resolution under
Section 5.2(f), the Corporation shall send to the holders of Common
Shares notice of and a brief description of the effect of the
determination under Section 5.2(a) or Section 5.2(c), as the case
may be.

If the events described in Sections 5.2(a), (b) or (c) shall not have
occurred within five business days after the Offer Date, or if any amended
certificate as described in Section 5.2(e) shall have been delivered, the
Corporation shall send as soon as reasonably possible to the holders of
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Common Shares a notice containing a brief description of the rights of
such holders hereunder.

54  The redemption of any Common Shares delivered to the Corporation for
redemption pursuant to Section 5.1 shall be subject to the provisions of
this Section 5.4 and the Corporation shall make all arrangements
necessary or desirable to give effect to this Section 5.4. All Common
Shares delivered for redemption pursuant to Section 5.1 shall be
redeemed subject to completion of the Offer but no cheques representing
the Redemption Price for the Common Shares so redeemed shall be
delivered to the holders of such Common Shares unless and until the
Offer is completed in accordance with its terms. Upon completion of the
Offer (the "Redemption Date”), the Corporation shall deliver to the
holders of such Common Shares payment representing the Redemption
Price for the Common Shares so redeemed. If the Offer is not completed,
the right provided in Section 5.1 shall not be effective and the Corporation
shall return or issue and deliver to the holders entitled thereto share
certificates representing Common Shares delivered to the Corporation
pursuant to Section 5.1.

55  Any cheque representing payment of the Redemption Price not presented
to the Corporation’s bankers for payment, or otherwise not claimed within
six years after the Redemption Date, shall be irrevocably forfeited to the
Corporation.

56 From and after the Redemption Date, the Common Shares redeemed
shall cease to be entitled to dividends, and the parties that were the
holders thereof shall not be entitled to exercise any of the rights of
shareholders in respect of such redeemed shares, unless payment of the
Redemption Price shall not be duly made by the Corporation.

5.7 All Common Shares which are redeemed, in accordance with the rights,
privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the Common Shares,
shall, subject to applicable law, be deemed to be returned to the
authorized but unissued capital of the Corporation.

6. Capital Reorganization

Neither the Non-Voting Common Shares nor the Common Shares shall be subdivided,
consolidated, reclassified or otherwise changed unless, contemporaneously therewith,
the shares of the other of such classes are subdivided, consolidated, reclassified or
otherwise changed in the same proportion and in the same manner.

I. NON-VOTING COMMON SHARES

The rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions of the Non-Voting Common Shares are
as set out in this Part Il and in Part lll. Unless otherwise indicated, any reference to
“Section” in this Part Il refers to a section of this Part Il

Legal*8613925.8
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1. Definitions

For purposes of this Part ll, the following definitions shall apply:

1.1
1.2
1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6
1.7
1.8
1.9

1.11
1.12
1.13

1.14

Legal*8613925.8

“Act” means the Business Corporations Act (Ontario), as now enacted;
“affiliate” has the meaning given thereto in the Act;

"business day” means a day on which securities may be traded on the
stock exchange on which the Common Shares are then listed or if such
shares are not then listed, a day other than a Saturday, a Sunday or any
other day on which the principal chartered banks located in Toronto,
Ontario are not open for business;

“‘Closing Date” has the meaning given thereto in the Transaction
Agreement dated January 25, 2013 between the Corporation and Hope
Bay Mining Ltd., as amended, restated or supplemented from time to time;

“‘Common Shares” means the common shares in the share capital of the
Corporation;

“Conversion Rights” has the meaning given thereto in Section 7.1(b);
“Conversion Time” has the meaning given thereto in Section 7.4;
“Corporation” means TMAC Resources Inc;

“‘Non-Voting Common Shares” means the non-voting common shares in
the share capital of the Corporation;

“‘Offer” means an offer to purchase Common Shares which must, by
reason of applicable securities legislation or by-laws, regulations or
policies of a stock exchange on which the Common Shares are listed, be
made to each holder of Common Shares whose last address on the
records of the Corporation is in a province or territory of Canada to which
the relevant requirement applies;

“Offer Date” means the date on which an Offer is made;
‘Redemption Date” has the meaning given thereto in Section 5.4;

‘Redemption Period” means the period of time commencing on the
seventh business day after the Offer Date and terminating on the last date
upon which holders of Common Shares may accept the Offer; and

“Redemption Price” means the value of the consideration offered under
an Offer which, in the case of non cash consideration shall be determined
solely by the board of directors of the Corporation, acting reasonably.
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2. Voting Rights

2.1 The holders of Non-Voting Common Shares shall be entitled to receive
notice of and to attend any meeting of the shareholders of the Corporation
provided that, except as required by law, the holders of Non-Voting
Common Shares shall not be entitled as such to vote at any meeting of
the shareholders of the Corporation. The holders of the Non-Voting
Common Shares shall be entitled to receive all informational documents
and other communications:

(a) required to be sent to the holders of Common Shares by applicable
law or by any stock exchange on which the Common Shares are
listed; and

(b)  voluntarily sent by the Corporation to the holders of Common
Shares in connection with any meeting of shareholders of the
Corporation.

2.2  Without limiting Section 2.1, the holders of Non-Voting Common Shares
shall not be entitled as such to vote separately as a class upon, nor
entitled to dissent in respect of, any proposal to amend the articles of the
Corporation to:

(a) increase or decrease any maximum number of authorized shares of
such class, or increase any maximum number of authorized shares
of a class or series having rights or privileges equal or superior to
the shares of such class;

(b) effect an exchange, reclassification or cancellation of the shares of
such class; or

(c) create a new class or series of shares equal or superior to the
shares of such class.

3. Dividends

The holders of Non-Voting Common Shares shall be entitled to receive dividends as
and when declared by the board of directors of the Corporation on the Non-Voting
Common Shares as a class, provided that no dividend may be declared in respect of, or
any other benefit conferred upon the holders of, Non-Voting Common Shares unless
concurrently therewith the same dividend per share in respect of, or the same benefit
per share, is conferred upon the holders of, the Common Shares determined as if all
Non-Voting Common Shares had been converted to Common Shares as of the date of
determination.

4. Participation upon Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up

The holders of Non-Voting Common Shares and the holders of Common Shares shall

Legal*8613925.8
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be entitled, in the event of the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation,
whether voluntary or involuntary, or any other distribution of the assets of the
Corporation among its shareholders for the purpose of winding-up its affairs, to share
rateably in such assets of the Corporation as are available for distribution.

5. Redemptions

Sl

5.2

Legal*8613925.8

Subject to the provisions of this Section 5 and applicable law, if an Offer is
made, each outstanding Non-Voting Common Share shall be redeemed
by the Corporation at the Redemption Price per Non-Voting Common
Share at the option of the holder as provided in Section 5.4. The
redemption right provided for in this Section 5.1 may be exercised by
notice in writing given to the Corporation during the Redemption Period
accompanied by the share certificate or certificates representing the Non-
Voting Common Shares in respect of which the holder desires to exercise
such right of redemption, and such notice shall be executed by the holder
of the Non-Voting Common Shares registered on the books of the
Corporation, or by his duly authorized attorney, and shall specify the
number of Non-Voting Common Shares which the holder desires to have
redeemed. The holder shall pay any governmental or other tax imposed
on or in respect of such redemption. Upon receipt by the Corporation of
such notice and share certificate or certificates, the Corporation shall issue
or cause to be issued a cheque for the aggregate Redemption Price to be
paid to such holder (less any tax required to be withheld) in accordance
with Sections 5.2 and 5.4. If less than all of the Non-Voting Common
Shares represented by any share certificate are to be redeemed, the
holder shall be entitled to receive a new share certificate representing in
the aggregate the number of Non-Voting Common Shares represented by
the original share certificate which are not to be redeemed.

The redemption right provided for in Section 5.1 shall not come into effect
if:

(a) one or more shareholders of the Corporation who did not make or
act in concert with the person or persons making the Offer and
who, in the aggregate, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or
exercise control or direction over, not less than 50% of the
outstanding Common Shares, determine within five business days
after the Offer Date that he or they will continue to so own or
exercise control or direction over, in the aggregate, 50% or more of
the outstanding Common Shares;

(b) contemporaneously with the Offer, an offer is made to the holders
of Non-Voting Common Shares upon the same terms and
conditions as those contained in the Offer, including the
consideration to be paid to the holders of Common Shares and the
offer is for the same percentage of Non-Voting Common Shares as
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the percentage of Common Shares sought to be acquired under the
Offer, excluding in each case the number of shares then owned by
the offeror;

the board of directors of the Corporation determines within five
business days after the Offer Date that the Offer is not bona fide or
is made primarily for the purpose of causing the redemption right
provided for in Section 5.1 to come into effect and not primarily for
the purpose of acquiring Common Shares; or

the Offer is not completed in accordance with its terms;

provided that:

(e)

in the case of Section 5.2(a), within six business days after the
Offer Date, a certificate signed by or on behalf of one or more
shareholders of the Corporation is delivered to the Secretary of the
Corporation confirming that: (A) such shareholders did not make or
act in concert with the person or persons making the Offer; (B) such
shareholders beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or exercise
control or direction over in the aggregate not less than 50% of the
outstanding Common Shares; and (C) such shareholders have
determined that they will not accept the Offer and provided further
that upon any variation of the Offer, including an increase in price,
such shareholders of the Corporation shall be deemed not to have
accepted the Offer as varied and the certificate delivered by or on
behalf of them as described above shall be deemed to continue to
apply and no further certificate need be filed for purposes of these
share provisions unless and until one or more of such shareholders
determine to accept the Offer as varied and the result of such
acceptance would be to reduce the aggregate holdings of the
remaining shareholders who delivered such certificate to less than
50% of the outstanding Common Shares in which case a certificate
to that effect signed by or on behalf of such shareholders who
determine to accept the Offer as varied shall be delivered to the
Corporation forthwith after such determination and, in any event,
not less than five business days prior to termination of the
Redemption Period,;

in the case of Section 5.2(c), provided that the Corporation has
appointed a transfer agent for the Non-Voting Common Shares, the
Secretary of the Corporation delivers to the transfer agent for the
Non-Voting Common Shares within six business days after the
Offer Date a certified copy of a resolution of the board of directors
of the Corporation determining that the Offer is not bona fide or is
made primarily for the purpose of causing the redemption right
provided for in Section 5.1 to come into effect and not primarily for



5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Legal*8613925.8

1J

the purpose of acquiring the Common Shares and stating the
reason for such determination; and

(g) as soon as reasonably possible after the receipt of a certificate
under Section 5.2(e) or a certified copy of a resolution under
Section 5.2(f), the Corporation shall send to the holders of Non-
Voting Common Shares notice of and a brief description of the
effect of the determination under Section 5.2(a) or Section 5.2(c),
as the case may be.

If the events described in Sections 5.2(a), (b) or (c) shall not have
occurred within five business days after the Offer Date, or if any amended
certificate as described in Section 5.2(e) shall have been delivered, the
Corporation shall send as soon as reasonably possible to the holders of
Non-Voting Common Shares a notice containing a brief description of the
rights of such holders hereunder.

The redemption of any Non-Voting Common Shares delivered to the
Corporation for redemption pursuant to Section 5.1 shall be subject to the
provisions of this Section 5.4 and the Corporation shall make all
arrangements necessary or desirable to give effect to this Section 5.4. All
Non-Voting Common Shares delivered for redemption pursuant to Section
5.1 shall be redeemed subject to completion of the Offer but no cheques
representing the Redemption Price for the Non-Voting Common Shares so
redeemed shall be delivered to the holders of such Non-Voting Common
Shares unless and until the Offer is completed in accordance with its
terms. Upon completion of the Offer (the “Redemption Date"), the
Corporation shall deliver to the holders of such Non-Voting Common
Shares payment representing the Redemption Price for the Non-Voting
Common Shares so redeemed. If the Offer is not completed, the right
provided in Section 5.1 shall not be effective and the Corporation shall
return or issue and deliver to the holders entitled thereto share certificates
representing Non-Voting Common Shares delivered to the Corporation
pursuant to Section 5.1.

Any cheque representing payment of the Redemption Price not presented
to the Corporation’s bankers for payment, or otherwise not claimed within
six years after the Redemption Date, shall be irrevocably forfeited to the
Corporation.

From and after the Redemption Date, the Non-Voting Common Shares
redeemed shall cease to be entitled to dividends, and the parties that were
the holders thereof shall not be entitled to exercise any of the rights of
shareholders in respect of such redeemed shares, unless payment of the
Redemption Price shall not be duly made by the Corporation.

All Non-Voting Common Shares which are redeemed, in accordance with



1K

the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the Non-
Voting Common Shares, shall, subject to applicable law, be deemed to be
returned to the authorized but unissued capital of the Corporation.

6. Capital Reorganization

Neither the Common Shares nor the Non-Voting Common Shares shall be subdivided,
consolidated, reclassified or otherwise changed unless, contemporaneously therewith,
the shares of the other of such classes are subdivided, consolidated, reclassified or
otherwise changed in the same proportion and in the same manner.

7. Conversion Rights

7.1

7.2

7.3

Legal*8613925.8

Each Non-Voting Common Share shall be convertible into one Common
Share without the payment of additional consideration as follows:

(a) at the election of the holder thereof at any time and from time to
time prior to the date that is 24 months following the Closing Date
provided that the holder thereof and its affiliates collectively hold
less than 49.9% of the Common Shares on a non-diluted basis
(and will hold 49.9% or less of the Common Shares on a non-
diluted basis upon such conversion), further provided that this
limitation will not apply if the redemption right provided for in
Section 5.1 comes into effect and after such time the holder may
convert any or all Non-Voting Common Shares held into Common
Shares without restriction; and

(b) automatically on the date that is 24 months following the Closing
Date (collectively, the "Conversion Rights”).

In the event of a notice of redemption of any Non-Voting Common Shares
pursuant to Section 5.1, the Conversion Rights of the shares designated
for redemption shall terminate at the close of business on the Redemption
Date, unless the Redemption Price is not fully paid on such Redemption
Date, in which case the Conversion Rights for such shares shall continue
until such price is paid in full. In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Corporation, the Conversion Rights shall terminate at
the close of business on the last full day preceding the date fixed for the
payment of any such amounts distributable on such event to the holders of
Common Shares and Non-Voting Common Shares.

No fractional Common Shares shall be issued upon conversion of Non-
Voting Common Shares. In lieu of any fractional shares to which the
holder would otherwise be entitled, the Corporation shall pay cash equal
to such fraction multiplied by the fair market value of a Common Share as
determined in good faith by the board of directors of the Corporation.
Whether or not fractional shares would be issuable upon such conversion
shall be determined on the basis of the total number of Non-Voting
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Common Shares the holder is at the time converting into Common Shares
and the aggregate number of Common Shares issuable upon such
conversion.

In order for a holder of Non-Voting Common Shares to voluntarily convert
Non-Voting Common Shares into Common Shares, such holder shall
surrender the certificate or certificates for such Non-Voting Common
Shares (or, if such registered holder alleges that such certificate has been
lost, stolen or destroyed, a lost certificate affidavit and agreement
reasonably acceptable to the Corporation to indemnify the Corporation
against any claim that may be made against the Corporation on account of
the alleged loss, theft or destruction of such certificate), at the office of the
transfer agent for the Non-Voting Common Shares (or at the principal
office of the Corporation if the Corporation serves as its own transfer
agent), together with written notice that such holder elects to convert all or
any number of the Non-Voting Common Shares represented by such
certificate or certificates in accordance with Section 7.1(a). Such notice
shall state such holder's name or the names of the nominees in which
such holder wishes the certificate or certificates for Common Shares to be
issued. If required by the Corporation, certificates surrendered for
conversion shall be endorsed or accompanied by a written instrument or
instruments of transfer, in form satisfactory to the Corporation, duly
executed by the registered holder or his, her or its attorney duly authorized
in writing. The close of business on the date of receipt by the transfer
agent for the Non-Voting Common Shares (or by the Corporation if the
Corporation serves as its own transfer agent) of such certificates (or lost
certificate affidavit and agreement) and notice shall be the time of
conversion (the “Conversion Time”), and the Common Shares issuable
upon conversion of the shares represented by such certificates shall be
deemed to be outstanding of record as of such date. The Corporation
shall, as soon as practicable after the Conversion Time, (i) issue and
deliver to such holder of Non-Voting Common Shares, or to his, her or its
nominees, a certificate or certificates for the number of full Common
Shares issuable upon such conversion in accordance with the provisions
hereof and a certificate for the number (if any) of the Non-Voting Common
Shares represented by the surrendered certificate that were not converted
into Common Shares, and (i) pay in cash such amount as provided in
Section 7.3 in lieu of any fraction of a Common Share otherwise issuable
upon such conversion.

The Corporation shall at all times when the Non-Voting Common Shares
shall be outstanding, reserve and keep available out of its authorized but
unissued share capital, for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the
Non-Voting Common Shares, such number of its duly authorized Common
Shares as shall from time to time be sufficient to effect the conversion of
all outstanding Non-Voting Common Shares; and if at any time the
number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Shares shall not be
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sufficient to effect the conversion of all then outstanding Non-Voting
Common Shares, the Corporation shall take such corporate action as may
be necessary to increase its authorized but unissued Common Shares to
such number of shares as shall be sufficient for such purposes, including,
without limitation, engaging in best efforts to obtain the requisite
shareholder approval of any necessary amendment to the articles of the
Corporation.

7.6 Al Non-Voting Common Shares which shall have been surrendered for
conversion as herein provided shall no longer be deemed to be
outstanding and all rights with respect to such shares shall immediately
cease and terminate at the Conversion Time, except only the right of the
holders thereof to receive Common Shares in exchange therefor, to
receive payment in lieu of any fraction of a share otherwise issuable upon
such conversion as provided in Section 7.3 and to receive payment of any
dividends declared but unpaid thereon.

7.7 If there shall occur any reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification,
consolidation or merger involving the Corporation in which the Common
Shares (but not the Non-Voting Common Shares) are converted into or
exchanged for securities, cash or other property (for greater certainty,
other than a transaction covered by Section 6), then, following any such
reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification, consolidation or merger,
each Non-Voting Common Share shall thereafter be convertible in lieu of
the Common Share into which it was convertible prior to such event into
the kind and amount of securities, cash or other property which a holder of
a Common Share issuable upon conversion of such Non-Voting Common
Share immediately prior to such reorganization, recapitalization,
reclassification, consolidation or merger would have been entitled to
receive pursuant to such transaction; and, in such case, appropriate
adjustment (as determined in good faith by the board of directors of the
Corporation) shall be made in the application of the provisions in this
Section 7 with respect to the rights and interests thereafter of the holders
of the Non-Voting Common Shares, to the end that the provisions set forth
in this Section 7 shall thereafter be applicable, as nearly as reasonably
may be possible, in relation to any securities or other property thereafter
deliverable upon the conversion of the Non-Voting Common Shares.

. ADDITIONAL TERMS

In addition to the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions of the common shares
(the “Common Shares”) in the share capital of TMAC Resources Inc. (the
“Corporation”) and of the non-voting common shares (the “Non-Voting Common
Shares”) in the share capital of the Corporation respectively set out in Part | and Part |l
the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions of the Common Shares and the Non-
Voting Common Shares shall include those as set out in this Part lIl.
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A holder of Common Shares or of Non-Voting Common Shares may
require the Corporation to acquire some or all of the Common Shares or
Non-Voting Common Shares held by such holder in order to satisfy a
liability owing by the holder to the Corporation under an indemnity or
otherwise.

The value of the Common Shares and the Non-Voting Common Shares to
be transferred to the Corporation shall be 75% of the market price of the
Common Shares as of the date of the Acquisition Notice (as defined
below), unless otherwise agreed in writing between the Corporation and
the holder. The market price for these purposes is the “market price”
determined pursuant to section 1.3 of Ontario Securities Commission Rule
62-504 or any successor provision.

The right provided for in this Part lll may be exercised by notice (the
“Acquisition Notice”) in writing given to the Corporation accompanied by
the share certificate or certificates representing the Common Shares and
Non-Voting Common Shares in respect of which the holder desires to
exercise such right, and such Acquisition Notice shall be executed by the
holder of the Common Shares and Non-Voting Common Shares, as the
case may be, registered on the books of the Corporation, or by his duly
authorized attorney, and shall specify the number of Common Shares and
Non-Voting Common Shares which the holder desires to have the
Corporation acquire. The holder shall pay any governmental or other tax
imposed on or in respect of such transfer. Upon receipt by the
Corporation of such Acquisition Notice and share certificate or certificates,
the Corporation shall register such transfer on the books of the
Corporation and deliver to the holder a full and final release in respect of
the amount of the applicable liability that has been satisfied by such
transfer. If less than all of the Common Shares or Non-Voting Common
Shares represented by any share certificate are to be acquired, the holder
shall be entitled to receive a new share certificate representing in the
aggregate the number of Common Shares or Non-Voting Common Shares
represented by the original share certificate which are not to be acquired.

From and after the date of receipt of the Acquisition Notice, the Common
Shares and Non-Voting Common Shares acquired by the Corporation
shall cease to be entitled to dividends, and the parties that were the
holders thereof shall not be entitled to exercise any of the rights of
shareholders in respect of such acquired shares.

All Common Shares and Non-Voting Common Shares which are
redeemed, in accordance with the rights, privileges, restrictions and
conditions attaching to the Common Shares and Non-Voting Common
Shares, shall, subject to applicable law, be deemed to be returned to the
authorized but unissued capital of the Corporation.



6. The amendment has been duly authorized as required by sectlons 168 and 170 (as applicable) of the Business
Corporations Acl.
La modification a été ddment autorisée conformément aux articles 168 et 170 (selon le cas) de la Loi surles
Sociélés par actions.

7.  The resolution authorizing the amendment was approved by the shareholders/directors (as applicable) of the
corporation on
Les actionnaires ou les administrateurs (selon le cas) de la société ont approuvé la résolution autorisant la
modification le

2013/03/08

(Year, Month, Day)
(année, mois, jour)

These articles are signed in duplicate.
Les présents statuts sont signés en double exemplaire.,

TMAC RESOURCES INC.

(Print name of corporalion from Article 1 on page 1)
(Veuillez écrir le nom de la société de I'arlicle un & la page une).

By/
Par:

= President and Chief Technology Officer
(51gﬁag3/ A (Description of Office)

(Slgnal (Fonction)
Gordon Morrison
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